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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Corporate Governance report

General Information

The Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme consists of six unit portfolios, of which  the Haussmann Rech Euro Fund is currently
dormant.  

The active funds became operational on 01 June 2015 except for Haussmann Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy Fund which
became operational on 30 August  2018.

Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund

Date of establishment: 04 December 2012

Fun objctive: 'Is to maximise current income to the extent consistent with the preservation of capital and the maintenance of
liquidity.'

Investment policy: The Fund's policy is to invest in a diversified unit portfolio of international high quality money market
securities and / or other funds with similar objectives as the Fund's objective.

The CIS Manager has recommended the winding up of the Fund.

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund (formerly known as Haussmann Rech Global Equity Multi Manager
Fund)

Date of establishment: 04 December 2012

Fund objective: 'Is to seek to secure, for investors, an overall growth of capital, as its primary objective, and income, as a
secondary objective.'

Investment policy: The Fund's policy is to acquire investments comprising of a mix of securities, as well as liquid assets, all to
be acquired at a fair market value.  Such securities will be held indirectly by means of other similar investment vehicles that, in
turn, invest in a mix of securities and liquid assets.

The unit portfolio may invest all of its assets in another unit portfolio of the Trust or in a single collective investment scheme
where it is authorised as a feeder unit portfolio / collective investment scheme, provided that the Commission is satisfied that
the feeder unit portfolio / collective investment scheme shall meet such terms and conditions as the Commission may deem fit.

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy Fund (formerly known as Haussmann Rech Global Equity Direct
Investment  Fund)

Date of establishment: 24 June 2014.

Fund objective: 'Is to seek to secure, for investors, an overall growth of capital, as its primary objective, and income, as a
secondary objective.'

Investment policy: The Fund's policy is to acquire investments comprising of a mix of securities, as well as liquid assets, all to
be acquired at a fair market value.  Such securities will be held indirectly by means of other similar investment vehicles that, in
turn, invest in a mix of securities and liquid assets.

The unit portfolio may invest all of its assets in another unit portfolio of the Trust or in a single collective investment scheme
where it is authorised as a feeder unit portfolio / collective investment scheme, provided that the Commission is satisfied that
the feeder unit portfolio / collective investment scheme shall meet such terms and conditions as the Commission may deem fit.
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Corporate Governance report

Haussmann Rech Global Fixed Income Fund

Date of establishment: 04 December 2012

Fund objective: 'Is to provide a total return to investors, through a combination of capital growth and income earned that is
commensurate with risks.'

Investment policy: The Fund's policy is to invest in a globally diversified portfolio of fixed income securities.  This may be
achieved through investing directly or indirectly in other funds.

Haussmann Rech Global Managed Fund

Date of establishment: 04 December 2012

Fund objective: 'Is to seek long-term growth of capital consistent with moderate investment risk and a reasonable level of
current income.'

Investment policy: The Fund's policy is to invest in a diversified range of international securities, directly held by the unit
portfolio, or indirectly by means of one or more collective investment vehicles.

The Scheme's registered office is situated at 1st Floor, 32 Ebene Heights, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius.
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Corporate Governance report

Principle 1 – Governance Structure

Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme (the “Scheme”) holds a Category 1 Global Business Licence issued by the Financial Services
Commission Mauritius(“FSC”) under the Financial Services Act 2007 and is authorised to operate as a Collective Investment
Scheme, structured as a trust under the Securities Act 2005 and the Financial Services (Consolidated Licensing & Fees) Rules 2008.
As per the Circular Letter- CL280218 issued by the Financial Services Commission on 28 February  2018, the Code applies to
Scheme.

African Alliance Mauritius Management Company Limited (the "CIS Manager")  has been appointed as management company for the
Scheme.  The Board of the CIS Manager (the "Board") is responsible for directing the affairs of the Scheme in the best interest of its
unitholders, in conformity with legal and regulatory frameworks, and consistent with its constitution and the best governance
practices.

It is to be noted that, as per the Code, all organisations should be headed by an effective Board. Responsibilities and accountabilities
within the organisation should be clearly identified. The Board takes its fiduciary responsibilities seriously. Each Director is appointed
with the understanding of the amount of time and care that they will need to devote to the Board and to the organisation in order for it
to prosper. The Board has approved all the key guiding documents and policies and affirms each key governance role.

Role of the Board

The Board also plays a leadership role by overseeing its delegated functions to ensure that objectives of the Scheme are being met
through the implementation of adequate policies and processes that lead to value-creation.

Key Governance Responsibilities

The Board acknowledges that it should lead and control the organisation and be collectively responsible for its long-term success,
reputation and governance. In so doing, the Board assumes responsibility for meeting all regulatory and legal requirements as
follows:

• Determine, agree and develop the Scheme’s general policy on corporate governance in accordance with the Code;

•    Advise and make recommendations to the Board on all aspects of corporate governance and new Board appointment;

•  Prepare the Corporate Governance Report; and

•   Review the terms and conditions of all service agreement between the Scheme and service providers.

Chairman of the Board

Mr Nigel England as Chairman of the Board, provides leadership and guidance to his fellow directors while ensuring that the Board is,
in collective terms, effective in its role as the Scheme’s main decision-making organ. He promotes a culture of engagement with each
director by encouraging a proactive participation in Board meeting discussions and decision-making process. The Chairman also
monitors the discussion time which is allocated to each agenda item at Board meetings, depending on their relative complexity, and
engages into a constructive dialogue with the investors and other stakeholders on behalf of the Board where necessary.
The key responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board can be summarised as follows:

• To provide leadership to the Board to ensure it functions effectively;

• In concert with the Directors and assistance of the Scheme Secretary, to develop and set the agendas for meetings of the

Board;

• To coordinate with the Trustee to ensure that the Board receives the appropriate quantity and quality of information in a

timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions;

• To chair all meetings of the Board and ensure that meetings are conducted efficiently and effectively;

• To ensure that the Directors are properly informed and that sufficient information is provided to enable the Directors to

form appropriate judgments;

• To ensure that all Directors exercise their skills, knowledge and expertise on key Board matters and assist the Board in

achieving a consensus;
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Corporate Governance report

Principle 1 – Governance Structure (continued)

• To develop teamwork and a cohesive Board culture and facilitate formal and informal communication with and among

Directors;

• To help ensure that action items established by the Board are worked on with the assistance of the Scheme Secretary

and appropriate follow-up actions are taken as necessary; and

•     To chair annual and special meetings of shareholders.

The Board has considered the adoption of a board charter in line with the recommendation of the Board in December 2018.

Principle 2 - The Structure of the Board and Its Committees

Due to the size of the Board of Directors, no other sub-committees except from audit and risk Committees ( The Corporate
Governance Committee, Board Risk Committee, Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee) have been set up. The
Board of Directors collectively considers the measures in respect of the Code of Corporate Governance issues and this is further
strengthened by the presence of independent intermediaries including, the African Alliance Group Audit and Risk Committee, a
Capital Allocation Committee comprising of independent members, Investment Advisors and, Auditors as additional safeguards in
meeting this principle as they submit periodic reports to the board.
The Board is a unitary Board and is composed of directors coming from different sectors. Every director has drawn from his
professional background and expertise in positively contributing to the Board’s activities.

The Board considers that its current size and composition are appropriate for the type of activity in which the Scheme is engaged
and for the effective discharge of the Board’s responsibilities.

Due to its size and nature of business as well as being a private Scheme, there are no independent directors. The profiles of the
Board of Directors are set out as follows:

•     Mr  A.M.B de Castro – Non-Executive Director ( appointed on 15 April 2014)

Mr de Castro holds a Bachelor of Arts and an Honours Degree in Economics from the University of the Witwatersrand. Mr de
Castro started his career at Standard Bank Investment Corporation as an economist in 1984. As group economist with Sechold
Group, he was the driver behind the expansion of the Sechold Group’s emerging interests in Africa. He was also a director of
Capital Alliance Asset Management before establishing the African Alliance Group in partnership with Brait (a company listed
on the Luxembourg and Johannesburg stock exchanges. He founded the African Alliance Group in 1992, which presently has
interests throughout Africa in investment banking, retail financial services, insurance and property. Mr de Castro is the Senior
Partner and Chief Executive Officer of the African Alliance Group.
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Corporate Governance report

Principle 2 – The Structure of the Board and Its Committees (continued)

•      Mrs M .J Comarmond– Executive Director (appointed on 15 September 2009)

Mrs Comarmond joined the African Alliance Group in 2008. She is currently the General Manager for PIVOT Limited (subsidiary
of African Alliance Group) in Mauritius where she oversees the Group centralised business process operations and serve on
several  African Alliance (AA) Boards as Director. She has over 30 years combined experience in Finance, Administration and
Management having held those positions mainly in Insurance, Investment and Accountancy firms. She finished a diploma in
Computer System Analysis and Design, completed partly the ICSA studies and followed General Management and Strategy
Execution senior executive’s programmes. Prior to that, she was the Office and Finance Manager at Microsoft – Indian Ocean
Islands regional office for 10 years. 

•       Mr N. England – Chairman and Group CFO (appointed on 01 February 2011)

Mr England is a qualified chartered accountant and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales.
He has held various executive finance positions including Group Financial Manager of the Murray & Roberts Group from 1990
to 1998; the Group Financial Director of the Telesure Investment Holdings Group from 2000 to 2008, which is an insurance
group, where he served as a director of Auto & General Insurance and Dial Direct Insurance; General Manager Finance for
Absa Life in 2009, and General Manager Finance for Absa Financial Services in 2010. Mr England joined the African Alliance
Group in October 2010 as Group CFO and serves as chairman of the Group Capital Allocation Committee, the Group Audit and
Risk Committee, and chairs numerous subsidiary company boards.

•       Mr K.W Van Staden – Executive Director (appointed on 19 July 2017)

Mr Van Staden holds a B Juris and LLB from the University of South Africa, an MBA from the University of Wales and an
Executive MBA from the University of Cape Town’s Graduate School of Business.  He has over 20 years’ experience in the
financial services industry having gained exposure within the legal, compliance and administration areas of both the banking
and asset management sectors.  He is the General Manager for African Alliance’s Asset Management Division.  Prior to joining
African Alliance he was the head of Maitland’s Corporate Services Division responsible for rendering fiduciary and corporate
administration services to structured finance and securitization programmes.

• Mr M.D Chuttur– Executive Director (appointed on 08 January 2018)

Mr Chuttur is a Fellow member of ACCA, Member of ICSA, Member of CISI and also holds an MBA along with a BA (Hons) in
Accounting and Financial Management from the University of Sunderland. He is a versatile and accomplished senior finance
and operations management professional with over 20 years’ experience across different sectors, namely, asset management,
banking, project management, strategy, finance & investments and corporate secretary & compliance. Along with his Mauritius
experience, he also acquired his experience in the Channel Islands and Cayman Islands. He was also the Director of Century
Banking Corporation Limited, an Islamic Investment Bank, located in Mauritius. He currently holds the position of Operation
Manager of the Investment Administration Services at Pivot Limited, a member of the African Alliance Group.
During the year ended 2018, 4 Board meetings were held and the directors attended same.
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Corporate Governance report

Principle 3 - Directors Appointment Procedures

As per the Code, there should be a formal, rigorous and transparent process for the appointment, election, induction and re-election
of directors. The Board will put in place before the year ended 31 December  2019 a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure be in
place for the appointment of the directors and also an induction program for the newly appointed directors.

•   Induction

The Company Secretary of the CIS Manager will work with the Board on a formal induction programme which will be put in place
before the year ended December 31, 2019 and will be imparted to those new Directors who will be appointed as Board members. All
new Board Members should be inducted by way of a formal induction programme which is overseen by the Board and the Company
Secretary of the CIS Manager.

On completion of the induction programme, the newly appointed Director should have sufficient knowledge and understanding of the
nature of the business, and the opportunities and challenges facing the Scheme, to enable them to effectively contribute to strategic
discussions and oversight of the Scheme.

•     Continuous Development Programme

The Board is aware of the requirement of holding Continuous Professional Development (‘CPD’) which will be put in place before the
year ended December 31, 2019. The Board and the Trustee will work on the training needs of each Board member.    

Trustee

The Trustee has an advisory role in all governance-related matters concerning the Scheme and acts as the main point of contact for
the directors and shareholders, should they require guidance on their statutory responsibilities.

The principal functions of the Trustee include supplying the Board with high quality and timely information, collaborating with the
Board in the preparation of agendas and coordinating the information flow between the directors.

Ocorian Corporate Services (Mauritius) Limited  (previously known as Abax Corporate Services Limited ) has been appointed by the
Board as Trustee since incorporation of the Scheme. 

Principle 4 - Directors’ Duties, Remuneration and Performance

•     Legal Duties

All of the Directors on the Board including any alternate directors are fully apprised of their fiduciary duties as laid out in the
Mauritius Companies Act, 2001.

•     Code of Ethics

The ethical standards of the Scheme are defined in a Code of Ethics and Conduct which the Scheme adopted. These policies and
procedures enable the Scheme to meet its regulatory obligations and also meet its objective of creating and operating with the
highest levels of business integrity and ethical best practice. The Code of Ethics for the year 2018 will be reviewed in the next board
meeting of the CIS Manager.
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Corporate Governance report

Principle 4 - Directors’ Duties, Remuneration and Performance (continued)

•     Board Evaluation

The Code encourages the Board to undertake a formal, regular and rigorous evaluation of its own performance and individual
directors, and produce a development plan on an annual basis.

The Board and the Company Secretary of the CIS Manager will plan an evaluation of the performance of the Board, individual
Directors and its policies and procedures. An evaluation programme will be put in place before the year ended December 31, 2019.

•     Conflict of Interest

The Directors must declare the nature of their interest(s), depending on the following circumstances:

•   at the meeting of the Directors at which the question of entering into the contract or arrangement is first taken into

consideration; 

•   if the Director is not at the date of the meeting interested in the proposed contract or arrangement, then at the next

meeting held after he becomes interested; or

•   in a case where the Director becomes interested in a contract or arrangement after it is made, then at the first

meeting of the Directors held after he becomes so interested.

A register of interests is kept by the Company Secretary of the CIS Manager and is updated on a regular basis.

•     IT Governance Policy

The Code provides that the Board is responsible for the governance of the organisations information strategy, information technology
and information security. Ocorian Corporate Services (Mauritius) Limited being Trustee of the Scheme is responsible for keeping all
statutory records and accounting records of the Scheme.

No Board member shall disclose any information of a confidential nature regarding the business of the Scheme. A Board member
shall not use such confidential information for his or her personal benefit.

•     Directors’ Remuneration

Given the size and nature of the business activities of the Scheme, there is no remuneration committee for the Scheme. There is no
remuneration policy in place as the Board is of opinion that such policy is not required for the Scheme for now. Moreover, the
executive and non-executive directors of the Scheme do not receive any form of remuneration from the Scheme.

•     Directors’ Liability Insurance

The CIS Manager of the Scheme has in place a proper liability Directors & Officers and Professional Indemnity Insurance cover for its
directors and officers, renewable on a yearly basis, for any legal action entered against them.

•     Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related to the Scheme if they have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Scheme or exercise
significant influence over the Scheme in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Scheme is subject to
common control or common significant influence.  Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

Please refer to note 8 of the individual financial statements of the Scheme.
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Corporate Governance report

Principle 5 - Risk Governance and Internal Control

The oversight of risk management and internal control activities, either at the level of the Scheme or its service providers, is currently
delegated to the Board of directors which regularly reviews the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of
the Scheme. The Board also reviews the performance of the external auditors and approves any proposed discharge of the external
auditors when circumstances warrant. Additionally, with the direction of the Board, management has developed and implemented
appropriate frameworks and effective processes for sound management of risk.

The Scheme has adopted an Internal Control Procedure Manual and Code of Ethics (the “Manual”) as required under Sections 40
and 41 of The Securities (Collective Investment Schemes and Closed-end Funds) Regulations 2008. The Board is ultimately
responsible for the Scheme’s system of internal control as well as implementation, maintenance and monitoring of the internal control
in place. The Board confirms that it will continue to identify, evaluate and manage the various risks faced by the Scheme.

The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the various risks faced by the Scheme.
Further, risks and uncertainties are managed at the level of the board of directors of the Scheme.  Moreover, considering the size and
nature of its business activities, the Scheme does not have a whistle blowing policy in place. Instead, all  affairs are addressed to the
Board of directors of the Scheme. Moreover, the trustee of the Scheme has a whistle blowing policy in place.

Moreover, the Board of directors is responsible for the day-to-day management as well as the Scheme’s strategic, financial,
operational and compliance risk matters. Further, the Board has also developed and implemented appropriate framework and
effective process for the sound management of risk. 

Principle 6 - Reporting with Integrity

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for:

• adequate accounting records and maintenance of effective internal control systems;

•  the preparation of financial statements which fairly present the state of affairs of the Scheme as at the end of the

financial year and the cash flows for the year and which comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS);

and

•  the use of appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The financial statements are tabled for review and approval by the Board of Directors before filing with the Financial Services
Commission Mauritius (‘FSC’) on an annual basis. Quarterly management accounts are filed with the FSC within 45 days of quarter
end.

The directors make an assessment of the Scheme’s ability to continue as a going concern and same is disclosed in the financial
statements every year. 
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Corporate Governance report

Principle 7 – Audit

•     Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair preparation of the financial statements in accordance with all the
requirements of the Companies Act 2001 and IFRS and for such internal controls as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Any deviations on the above will be reported in the independent auditors’ report attached to the financial statements.

•     Environment Issues

Due to the nature of its activities, the Scheme has no adverse impact on environment.

•     Health and Safety Issues

Due to the nature of its activities, the Scheme has no impact on health and safety issues.

•     Social Issues

Due to the nature of its activities, the Scheme has no adverse impact on social issues.

•     Corporate Social Responsibility

Due to the nature of its activities, the Scheme has no corporate social responsibility in place.

•     Charitable and Political Contribution

The Scheme has not made any donations during the current or in previous year.

•  External Audit

The external auditors are responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fairly presented.

KPMG was re-appointed as the statutory auditors for the financial year ended 31 December  2018 at the shareholders’ meeting
during the year.

An audit plan is prepared annually by Group internal audit and agreed with the auditors.
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Unit Trust Funds report

The management company is pleased to present their report for Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme ("the Scheme") for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The Scheme is licensed as a Collective Investment Scheme, structured as a Trust which constitutes of several portfolios.

The Scheme was granted a GBL  Category 1  License on 26 December 2016.

Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Registered office

1st Floor, 32 Ebene Heights

Cybercity, Ebene

Mauritius

Trustee

Ocorian Corporate Services (Mauritius)  Limited

6th Floor, Tower A

1 Cybercity, Ebene

Mauritius

Custodian

Standard Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited

Units 6A and 6B

6th Floor, Raffles Tower

Lot 19, Cybercity, Ebene

Mauritius

CIS Manager

African Alliance Mauritius Management Company Limited

1st Floor, 32 Ebene Heights

Cybercity, Ebene

Mauritius
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Unit Trust Funds report

Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme (continued)

CIS Administrator

Pivot Limited

1st Floor, 32 Ebene Heights

Cybercity, Ebene

Mauritius

Auditors

KPMG

KPMG Centre

31, Cybercity

Ebene

Mauritius

Directors of CIS Manager

A.M.B de Castro

M.J Comarmond

N. England

K.W Van Staden

M.D Chuttur

The unit portfolios

The Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme consists of the following six unit portfolios, of which one (the Haussmann Rech Euro
Fund)  is currently dormant.

The four unit portfolios became operational on 01 June 2015 and Haussman Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy Fund became
operational on 30 August 2018.
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Unit Trust Funds report

The unit portfolios (continued)

Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund

Date of establishment: 04 December 2012

Fund objective: 'Is to maximise current income to the extent consistent with the preservation of capital and the maintenance of
liquidity.'

Investment policy: The Fund's policy is to invest in a diversified unit portfolio of international high quality money market
securities and / or other funds with similar objectives as the Fund's objective.

Fees: A maximum fee of 2% p.a. is permissible in terms of Clause 8.2 of the supplemental Trust Deed.  Initial fees, not
exceeding 5 %, are permissible in terms of Clause 8.1 of the supplemental Trust Deed.

The board of directors of the CIS Manager recommended the wind up of Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund on 17 November 2017.
The winding up costs incurred by the Fund will be offset against  any additional income earned during the  period, and any
excess costs  will be borne by the CIS Manager.  

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund (previously known as Haussmann Rech Global Equity Multi
Manager Fund)

Date of establishment: 04 December 2012

Fund objective: 'Is to seek to secure, for investors, an overall growth of capital, as its primary objective, and income, as a
secondary objective.'

Investment policy: The Fund's policy is to acquire investments comprising of a mix of securities, as well as liquid assets, all to
be acquired at a fair market value.  Such securities will be held both directly and indirectly by means of other similar investment
vehicles that, in turn, invest in a mix of securities and liquid assets.

The unit portfolio may invest all of its assets in another unit portfolio of the Trust or in a single collective investment scheme
where it is authorised as a feeder unit portfolio / collective investment scheme, provided that the Commission is satisfied that
the feeder unit portfolio / collective investment scheme shall meet such terms and conditions as the Commission may deem fit.

Fees: A maximum fee of 2% p.a. is permissible in terms of Clause 8.2 of the supplemental Trust Deed.  Initial fees, not
exceeding 5 %, are permissible in terms of Clause 8.1 of the supplemental Trust Deed.

As from 21 May 2018, the Fund changed its name to Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund.

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy Fund (previously known as Haussmann Rech Global Equity Direct
Investment Fund)

Date of establishment: 04 December 2012

Fund objective:'Is to seek to secure, for investors, an overall growth of capital, as its primary objective, and income, as a
secondary objective.'

Investment policy: The Fund's policy is to acquire investments comprising of a mix of securities, as well as liquid assets, all to
be acquired at a fair market value.  Such securities will be held both directly and indirectly by means of other similar investment
vehicles that, in turn, invest in a mix of securities and liquid assets.
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Unit Trust Funds report

The unit portfolios (continued)

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy Fund (previously known as Haussmann Rech Global Equity Direct
Investment Fund) (continued)

The unit portfolio may invest all of its assets in another unit portfolio of the Trust or in a single collective investment scheme
where it is authorised as a feeder unit portfolio / collective investment scheme, provided that the Commission is satisfied that
the feeder unit portfolio / collective investment scheme shall meet such terms and conditions as the Commission may deem fit.

Fees: A maximum fee of 2% p.a. is permissible in terms of Clause 8.2 of the supplemental Trust Deed.  Initial fees, not
exceeding 5 %, are permissible in terms of Clause 8.1 of the supplemental Trust Deed.

As from 21 May 2018, the Fund changed its name from Haussmann Rech Global Equity Direct Investment Fund to Haussmann
Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy Fund.

Haussmann Rech Global Fixed Income Fund

Date of establishment: 04 December 2012

Fund objective: 'Is to provide a total return to investors, through a combination of capital growth and income earned that is
commensurate with risks.'

Investment policy: The Fund’s policy is to invest in a globally diversified portfolio of fixed income securities.  This may be
achieved by investing directly in the securities or indirectly in other funds.

Fees: A maximum fee of 2% p.a. is permissible in terms of Clause 8.2 of the supplemental Trust Deed.  Initial fees, not
exceeding 5 %, are permissible in terms of Clause 8.1 of the supplemental Trust Deed.

Haussmann Rech Global Managed Fund

Date of establishment: 04 December 2012

Fund objective: 'Is to seek long-term growth of capital consistent with moderate investment risk and a reasonable level of
current income.'

Investment policy: The Fund's policy is to invest in a diversified range of international securities, directly held by the unit
portfolio, or indirectly by means of one or more collective investment vehicles.

Fees: A maximum fee of 2% p.a. is permissible in terms of Clause 8.2 of the supplemental Trust Deed.  Initial fees, not
exceeding 5 %, are permissible in terms of Clause 8.1 of the supplemental Trust Deed.

Haussmann Rech Euro Fund

The Haussmann Rech Euro Fund is currently dormant.
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Unit Trust Funds report

1.  Trustee

The trustee has verified that, for the year ended 31 December 2018, the issue, sale, redemption and cancellation of units,
the calculation of the price of the Scheme's units and the application of the Scheme's income have been carried out in
accordance with the Trust Deed.

The trustee is further of the opinion that, for the year ended 31 December 2018, the Unit Trust Scheme has been managed
in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the manager and the trustee by the
Trust Deed.

The trustee is entitled to a fixed annual trustee fee of USD 5 000, and variable annual fees of USD 5 000 for each active
portfolio as from 01 June 2015.

2.  Management company

The management company of the Trust is African Alliance Mauritius Management Company Limited (the "CIS Manager")  a
company incorporated in Mauritius (registration number C080778 C1 / GBL).  

The CIS Manager is entitled to an initial charge of up to 5%, included in the sale price of a Unit, as set out in the Unit
Portfolio Supplemental Deed.

The CIS Manager is entitled to a Manager's charge at a rate not exceeding 2% per annum, or such higher maximum
percentage as the Commission may on the application of the CIS Manager allow, of the daily market value of the total
assets of that Unit Portfolio, including income accrued to date.

The amount accrued on account of the CIS Manager's charge shall be paid to the CIS Manager from the income account as
soon as practicable after the end of each calendar month.

3.  Custodian

As from 01 June 2015, the Standard Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited agreed a flat fee of USD 3,000 per month for the
Scheme.

As per Board's direction at the meeting held on 10 May 2018, no custodian fees (which are charged for the overall Scheme)
should be allocated to Haussmann Rech Managed Fund to avoid duplication of fees, as this Fund is entirely investing in
underlying funds within the Scheme.

4.  Portfolio Managers and Advisors

African Alliance Mauritius Management Company Limited, the management company, acted as portfolio manager and
advisor to the Unit Trust Scheme during the entire period under review.
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Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Unit Trust Funds report

5.  Review of activities

Main business and operations

The Unit Trust Scheme generated income (excluding net gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
income equalisation) and incurred expenses during the year, as set out in the table below:

Year
ended

31 December 2018

Year
ended

31 December 2017
Income Expense Income Expense

Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund 14 703 (7 980) 18 872 (15 749)
Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund 44 153 (256 112) 28 038 (200 040)
Haussmann Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy Fund 53 958 (102 644) - -
Haussmann Rech Global Fixed Income Fund 128 356 (181 038) 43 545 (144 540)
Haussmann Rech Global Managed Fund - (16 219) - (24 714)

Fund distributions

Total distributions to unit holders of the Unit Trust Scheme during the  year  are set out below:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund - (6 680)

Net asset values

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund
Net asset value for fund pricing 667 069 750 138
Units in issue 663 903 753 695
Net asset value per unit 1.00 1.00

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund
Net asset value for fund pricing 8 933 151 29 214 846
Units in issue 11 477 754 27 755 382
Net asset value per unit 0.78 1.05

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy Fund
Net asset value for fund pricing 13 348 369 -
Units in issue 15 323 092 -
Net asset value per unit 0.87 -

Haussmann Rech Global Fixed Income Fund
Net asset value for fund pricing 14 142 033 14 323 305
Units in issue 13 558 591 13 550 560
Net asset value per unit 1.04 1.06

Haussmann Rech Global Managed Fund
Net asset value for fund pricing 14 070 600 9 490 035
Units in issue 9 727 981 9 124 387
Net asset value per unit 1.45 1.04
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5.  Review of activities (continued)

Unit prices

The highest and lowest unit prices during the reporting periods are set out below:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund
Highest unit price 1.13 1.06
Lowest unit price 0.75 0.89

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy Fund
Highest unit price 1.02 -
Lowest unit price 0.83 -

Haussmann Rech Global Fixed Income Fund
Highest unit price 1.08 1.07
Lowest unit price 1.04 1.00
Haussmann Rech Global Managed Fund
Highest unit price 1.10 1.04
Lowest unit price 0.88 0.92
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1. Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
issued by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB), and interpretations issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The financial statements are presented in US Dollar which is the Scheme's functional currency. All values are rounded to
the nearest US Dollar, except where otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Except for the changes explained in Note 1.13, the Scheme has consistently applied the following accounting policies to
all periods presented in these financials.

1.1 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Scheme’s accounting policies, the following judgments, having the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, have been made.

Going concern

The Scheme’s management has made an assessment of the Scheme’s ability to continue as a going concern and is
satisfied that the Scheme has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.  Furthermore,
management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Scheme’s ability to
continue as a going concern.  Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Estimates and assumptions

The Scheme did not apply any estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.  However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Scheme.  Such
changes will be reflected in those assumptions when they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, their fair values are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use
of mathematical models.  The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values.  The estimates include considerations of liquidity and
model inputs, such as credit risks (both own and counterparty’s), correlation and volatility.  Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments in the Statement of financial position and
the level where the instruments are disclosed in the fair value hierarchy.
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1.2 Financial instruments

• Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated.  All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not a Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at
the transaction price.

• Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets – Policy applicable from  1 January 2018

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised costs:Fair Value Other
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)-debt investment; FVOCI- equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
fisrt day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and its not designated as
at FVPL:

• It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

• Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment ‘s fair value in OCI. This selection is made on investment-by –investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised costs or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.
This includes all derivative financial assets.  On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised costs at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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1.2 Financial instruments(continued)

Financial assets- Business model assessments: Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Scheme makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

• the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include

whether  management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining on a particular

interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets  to the duration of any related liabilities or

expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

• how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management

• the risks that affect the performance of the portfolio of the business model ( and the financial assets held within

that business model) and how those risks are managed.

• how managers of the business are compensated- eg whether compensation is based on the fair value of the

assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

• the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and

expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales
for this purpose, consistent with Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets- Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest:
Policy applicable from  January 2018

For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g liquidity risk and
administrative costs) , as well as a profit margin.

 In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instruments.  This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount contractual  cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this
assessment , the Company considers:

-contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

-terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features ;
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1.2 Financial instruments(continued)

Financial assets- Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest:
Policy applicable from  January 2018(Continued)

-prepayment and extension features; and

-terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount
substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include
reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract.  Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a
discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that
substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair
value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains  and losses: Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses  and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is  recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.  Interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends
are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never
reclassified to profit or loss. 
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1.2 Financial instruments(continued)

Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains  and losses: Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

Financial assets at FVTPL Measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest or
dividend income, were recognised in profit or loss.  

Held-to-maturity financial assets Measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Loans and receivables Measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Available- for-sale financial assets Measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment
losses, interest income and foreign currency differences on debt
instruments, were recognised in OCI and accumulated in the fair value
reserve. When these assets are derecognised, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity was reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other liabilities: Other payables and net asset attributable to unit holders

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if:

•  it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term;

•  on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio that is managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent

pattern of short-term profit taking; or

• is a derivative, other than a designated and effective hedging instrument.

The Scheme designates all debt and equity investments at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition because it
manages these securities on a fair value basis in accordance with its documented investment strategy. 
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1.2   Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Scheme derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Scheme neither transfers nor retains substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.  Any interest in such transferred financial
assets that is created or retained by the Scheme is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised), and consideration received (including any new asset obtained
less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

The Scheme enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial position, but
retains either all or substantially all risks and rewards of the transferred asset or a portion of them.  If all or substantially
all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised.  Transfers of assets with retention of
all or substantially all risks and rewards include sale and repurchase transactions.

The Scheme derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market
to which the Scheme has access at that date.  The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Scheme measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that
instrument.  A market is regarded as 'active' if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.  The Scheme measures instruments quoted in an active
market at closing price.

Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at
initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using effective interest method
of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.
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1.2 Financial instruments(continued)

Impairment

The company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on all financial assets. The amount of expected
credit losses is updated at each reporting date.

Loss allowance for all receivables is determined as lifetime expected credit losses (simplified approach).  Loss allowance
for receivables is determined in the same manner as prescribed for all financial assets at amortised cost.

The company measures the loss allowance for trade and other receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses (lifetime ECL), which represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the receivable.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The company makes use of a provision matrix as a practical expedient to the determination of expected credit losses on
trade and other receivables. The provision matrix is based on historic credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current and forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including the time value of money, where appropriate.

The customer base is widespread and does not show significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments.
The loss allowance is calculated on a collective basis for all trade and other receivables in totality.

An impairment gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables, through use of a loss allowance account.  The impairment loss is included in other operating
expenses in profit or loss as a movement in credit loss allowance.

Write off policy

The company writes off a receivable when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Receivables written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
company recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in

profit or loss.

1.3 Functional and presentation currency

The Scheme's functional currency is the US Dollar, which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which it
operates.  The Scheme's performance is evaluated and its liquidity is managed in US Dollar.  Therefore, the US Dollar is
considered as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and
conditions.  The Scheme's presentation currency is also the US Dollar.

1.4 Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the dates of the
transactions.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated into
the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.  Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date
that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognised in profit or loss as net foreign exchange gain/(loss),
except for those arising on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which are recognised as a component
of net gain from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.
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1.5 Net gain/(loss) from the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain/(loss) from financial asset at fair value through profit or loss includes all realised and unrealised fair value
changes but excludes interest and dividend income.

1.6 Redeemable participating units

Redeemable participating units are redeemable at the unit holders' option and are classified as financial liabilities.  The
liabilities arising from the redeemable units are carried at the redemption amount, being the net asset value calculated in
accordance with the Trust Deed.

The Scheme issues units at the net asset value of the existing units.  The holder of participating units can redeem at any
time during the year for cash equal to a proportionate unit of the Scheme's net asset value (calculated in accordance with
redemption requirements).  The Scheme's net asset value per unit is calculated by dividing the net assets attributable to
unit holders (calculated in accordance with redemption requirements) by the number of units in issue.

1.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits with banks and highly liquid financial assets with maturities of three
months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used
by the Scheme in the management of short-term commitments, other than cash collateral provided in respect of
derivatives and securities borrowing transactions.

1.8 Distributions to unit holders

In accordance with the Funds' constitution, each unit portfolio fully distributes its distributable income to unit holders.

Proposed distributions to unit holders are recognised in profit or loss on the Fund's ex-date.  The distribution expense is
recognised in profit or loss as a finance cost.

Distributable income excludes capital gains arising from the disposal of investments and unrealised gains or losses on
revaluation of investments.

1.9 Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the profit or loss for all interest-earning financial instruments using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument (or, when appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial
instrument. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Scheme estimates future cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses.  Interest received or receivable are recognised
in profit or loss as interest income.

1.10 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the right to receive payment is established.  For quoted
equity securities this is usually the ex-dividend date.  For unquoted securities, this is usually the date when the
shareholders have approved the payment of a dividend.

Dividend income from equity securities designated as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit or loss
as a separate line item.

1.11 Fees

Unless included in the effective interest calculation, fees are recognised on an accrual basis.

34



Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme

Accounting policies

1.12 Income taxes

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash inflows from investments are presented net of withholding taxes,
when applicable.

The Scheme is not taxable in Mauritius.

1.13 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Scheme has consistently applied the accounting policies as set out in Note 1.1 to 1.12 to all periods presented in
these financial statements.

The audited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), on a basis consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of the following new or revised standards.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The effect of adopting IFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial assets relates mainly to new measurement categories
on the Scheme's financial assets as at 1 January 2018 as detailed in the table below.

In the current year, the Scheme has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in July 2014) and the related
consequential amendments to other IFRSs. IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments and introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) impairment for
financial assets and 3) general hedge accounting. Details of these new requirements as well as their impact on the
Scheme's financial statements are described below.

The Scheme has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9.
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1.13 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Classification of financial assets

The following table presents a summary of the financial assets as at 01 January 2018. The table reconciles the movement
of financial assets from their IAS 39 measurement categories and into their new IFRS 9 measurement categories.

Financial assets Original classification

under IAS 39

New classification

under IFRS 9

Original carrying

amount under IAS 39

New carrying amount

under IFRS 9

USD USD

Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund

Interest receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost         431  431

Cash and cash

equivalents

Loans and receivables Amortised cost 757 142 757 142

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

loss

29 156 969 29 156 969

Dividend and other

receivables

Loans and receivables Amortised cost      14 166    14 166

Cash and cash

equivalents

Loans and receivables Amortised cost      71 932 71 932

Haussmann Rech Global Fixed Income Fund

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

loss

              13 366 088                13 366 088

Other  receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost              581 976                 581 976

Cash and cash

equivalents

Loans and receivables Amortised cost             391 839             391 839

Haussmann Rech Global Managed Fund

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

losss

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss

        9 450 234       9 450 234

Cash and cash

equivalents

Loans and receivables Amortised cost          45 667        45 667
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1.13 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Classification of financial liabilities

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

Impairment of financial assets

• Trade and other receivables

Other receivables represent low-risk items for which no impairment is required.

• Cash and cash equivalents

The Scheme only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-
party.

1.14 New and amended standards and interpretations 

Amendments mandatory effective for the year ending 31 December 2018.

The following is a summary of the new and revised IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018.

During 2018, the Scheme adopted a number of interpretations and amendments to standards which had an insignificant
effect on the financial statements of Haussmann Rech Unit Trust Scheme.

.

• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

• IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

This standard replaces IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC
15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31Revenue –
Barter of Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

The standard contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers and two approaches to recognising
revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model features a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions to
determine whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. 

The standard did not have a significant impact on the Scheme.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
The Scheme has adopted IFRS 9 as issued by the IASB in July 2014 with a date of transition of 1 January 2018, which
resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts previously recognised in the financial
statements. The Scheme did not early adopt IFRS 9 in previous periods.
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1.14  Standards and interpretations not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement

The IFRS 9 standard includes changes in the classification and measurement bases of the Scheme's financial assets to
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss. The Scheme’s financial
assets are held at amortised cost. There is therefore no change to classification of these assets.  Refer to note 26 for
more details.

IFRS 9 will require financial assets to be classified on the basis of two criteria:
- The business model within which financial assets are managed, and
- Their contractual cash flow characteristics (whether the cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest).

Financial assets will be measured at amortised cost if they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and their contractual cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest.

Financial assets will be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if they are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and their
contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

Other financial assets are required to be measured at fair value through profit and loss if they are held for the purposes of
trading, if their contractual cash flows do not meet the ‘solely payments of principal and interest' criterion, or if they are
managed on a fair value basis and the Scheme maximises cash flows through sale. IFRS 9 allows an entity to irrevocably
designate a financial asset as at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (that is, an accounting mismatch).

Impairment calculation

The impairment model has been changed from an “incurred loss” model from IAS 39 to a forward-looking “expected credit
loss” (ECL) model under IFRS 9. The new impairment model makes use of historical data related to the financial assets
to analyse historical cash flows as they relate to the recoverability of defaulted and non-defaulted assets.

IFRS 9 outlines a “three stage” model for impairment based on credit quality since initial recognition, as summarized
below:

A financial asset  issued that is not credit impaired on recognition and has not undergone significant deterioration in credit
risk (SICR) since initial recognition in classified in “Stage 1”. If a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
has been identified, the financial asset is classified in “Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit impaired.  If the
financial asset is credit impaired then it is classified in Stage 3.

Within the Scheme the following definitions exist for the classification of financial assets and identification of SICR:

• Any financial asset which is performing and up to 30 days in arrears is considered Stage 1

• Any financial asset with a maximum arrears level of between 31 and 90 days is considered Stage 2

• Any financial assets with a maximum arrears level of greater than 90 days is considered credit impaired and

stage 3

Once the portfolio has been classified into the three given stages, IFRS 9 loss allowances are measured on either of the
following bases: 

• Stage 1 : 12-month expected loss – A 12-month ECL implies the loss expected in the 12 months following

reporting date.

• Stage 2 and Stage 3 : Lifetime ECLs – that is, the loss expected over the lifetime of loans falling within this

category.
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1.14  Standards and interpretations not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instrument (Continued)

ECL Methodology

The methodology adopted by the Scheme to calculate Expected Credit Losses relies on historical cash flow data across
all jurisdictions. This data allows for an accurate estimation of historical losses, given certain levels of arrears reached.
This data takes into account any recoveries made from accounts which rectify from arrears, as well as written off amounts
from accounts which failed to rectify. The historical data is distilled into Expected Credit Loss rates which are applied to
individual accounts, based on the level of arrears for that account.

In addition to the historical cash flow modelling, Expected credit Losses are subjected to forward looking adjustments
based on “upside” and “downside” scenarios. That is, the final ECL value is a weighted average of the current impairment
number (given current portfolio dynamics), a projected value based on favourable conditions and a projected value based
on unfavourable conditions. This is based on the IFRS 9 requirement that ECL estimates are based on multiple future
scenarios encompassing with favourable and unfavourable economic conditions.

Refer to  note 1.13 for changes in accounting policies for more detailed explanation.

The Scheme has assessed the impact of this standard and investments which were initially classified under IAS 39 as
designated as at fair value through profit or Loss are now classified as mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss or
financial assets at amortised costs under IFRS 9.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations

When foreign currency consideration is paid or received in advance of the item it relates to – which may be an asset, an
expense or income – IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates is not clear on how to determine the
transaction date for translating the related item.

This has resulted in diversity in practice regarding the exchange rate used to translate the related item. IFRIC 22 clarifies
that the transaction date is the date on which the company initially recognises the prepayment or deferred income arising
from the advance consideration. For transactions involving multiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt gives
rise to a separate transaction date.

The standards and interpretations did not have a significant impact on the Scheme's financial statements.

Not yet mandatory effective but early application allowed for the year ended 31 December 2018

The Scheme has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and
are mandatory for the company's accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 or later periods : 

Effective for the financial year commencing 1 January 2019

• IFRS 16 Leases

• IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was published in January 2016. It sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (‘lessee’) and the supplier (‘lessor’). IFRS 16 replaces
the previous leases Standard, IAS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. IFRS 16 includes a single model for lessees
which will result in almost all leases being included in the Statement of Financial Position. No significant changes have
been included for lessors. IFRS 16 also includes extensive new disclosure requirements for both lessees and lessors.
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Accounting policies

1.14  New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the Scheme’s financial statements.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early adoption permitted only if the
entity also adopts IFRS 15.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting for income tax treatments that have yet to be accepted by tax authorities. Specifically,
IFRIC 23 provides clarity on how to incorporate this uncertainty into the measurement of tax as reported in the financial
statements.

IFRIC 23 does not introduce any new disclosures but reinforces the need to comply with existing disclosure requirements
about:  

• judgments made;   

• assumptions and other estimates used; and      

• the potential impact of uncertainties that are not reflected.

The standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the Scheme’s financial statements.

IFRIC 23 applies for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Earlier adoption is permitted.

40



Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund

Audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018



Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note 2018 2017

Assets

Interest receivable 1 373 431

Cash and cash equivalents 1 677 741 757 142

Total assets 679 114 757 573

Liabilities

Management fees 8 6 722 64

Trustee fees 8 825 3 363

Audit fees 5 617 3 561

Other payable 5 603 447

Total liabilities excluding net assets attributable to unit holders 18 767 7 435

Net assets attributable to unit holders 660 347 750 138

Represented by :
Net assets attributable to unit holders 660 347 750 138

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 46 to 53 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended  31

December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note 2018 2017

Interest income 2 14 703 18 872

Expenses

Management fees 8 (6 916) (1 857)

Trustee fees 8 - (7 538)

Audit fees (5 629) (3 561)

Bank charges - (171)

Other operating expenses (2 158) (2 622)

Total expenses (14 703) (15 749)

Operating profit before finance costs - 3 123

Finance costs

Distribution to unit holders - (6 680)

Increase / (decrease)  in net assets attributable to unit holders - (3 557)

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 46 to 53 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to unit holders for the year ended 

31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note

Net assets
attributable to
unit holders

Number of
units

Net asset
value

per unit

Balance at 01 January 2017 3 609 830 3 609 830 -

Contributions and redemptions by unit holders
Issue of units during the year 1 555 126 1 555 126
Redemption of units during the year (4 411 261) (4 411 261)
Decrease in net assets attributable to unit holders (3 557) -

Balance at 31 December 2017 6 750 138 753 695 1.00

Balance at 01 January 2018 750 138 753 695 1.00

Contributions and redemptions by unit holders
Redemption of units during the year (89 791) (89 791)
Increase in net assets attributable to unit holders - -

Balance at 31 December 2018 6 660 347 663 904 1.00

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 46 to 53 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest received 13 761 20 845

Trustee fees paid (2 538) (5 500)

Management fees paid (257) (2 099)

Audit fees paid (3 573) (4 444)

Bank charges paid - (171)

Other operating expenses paid 2 997 (2 294)

Net cash generated from operating activities 10 390 6 337

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of units 5 - 1 548 065

Payment on redemption of units 5 (89 791) (4 411 261)

Distributions paid to unit holders 4 - (152)

Net cash used in financing activities (89 791) (2 863 348)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (79 401) (2 857 011)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the  year 757 142 3 614 153

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 677 741 757 142

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 46 to 53 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar 2018 2017

1. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of :

Bank balances and liquid investments 677 741 757 142

Analysed as:
Money market investments 664 682 729 731
Cash at bank 13 059 27 411

677 741 757 142

Refer to Note 11, Analysis of total assets, for further details.

2. Interest income

Money market investments 14 703 18 872

3. Distributions to unit holders

Distributions declared at
January - 1 331
February - 1 194
March - 1 307
April - 1 035
May - 569
June - 646
July - 475
August - 123

- 6 680

4.   Distributions paid to unit holders

Opening balance - (533)
Distributions for the year (Note 3) - (6 680)
Closing balance - -

- (7 213)

Distributions re-invested (Note 5) - (7 061)
Distributions paid - (152)

- (7 213)

5. Issue and redemption of units during the year

Units created during the year - 1 555 126
Amount of units reinvested (Note 4) - (7 061)

Proceeds from issue of units - 1 548 065
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Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar 2018 2017

5. Issue and redemption of units during the year (continued)

Units redeemed during the year (89 791) (4 411 261)

Payment on redemption of units (89 791) (4 411 261)

6. Redeemable participating units

The Fund's capital is represented by these redeemable participating units.  Quantitative information about the Fund's
capital is provided in the Statement of changes in net assets attributable to unit holders.

Each unit issued confers upon the unit holder an equal interest in the Fund, and is of equal value.  A unit does not
confer any interest in any particular asset or investment of the Fund.  Unit holders have various rights under the Fund's
Trust Deed, including the right to:

• have their unit redeemed at a proportionate unit price based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the

redemption date,

• receive income distributions, and

• participate in the termination and winding up of the Fund.

The rights, obligations and restrictions attached to each unit are identical in all respects.  

For the purpose of issue and redemption of units, the net assets attributable to unit holders are calculated in accordance
with the Fund's Trust Deed.

7. Capital management

As a result of the ability to issue and redeem units, the capital of the Fund can vary depending on the demand for
redemptions and subscriptions to the Fund.  The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and has
no legal restrictions on the issue or redemption of redeemable units beyond those included in the Fund's constitution.

The Fund's objectives for managing capital are:

• to invest the capital investments meeting the description, risk exposure and expected return indicated in its

Trust Deed,

• to achieve consistent returns while safeguarding capital by investing in a diversified portfolio, by participating in

other capital markets and by using various investment strategies, and

• to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the Fund, and to meet redemption requests as they arise.
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Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar 2018 2017

8. Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the party in making financial or operational decisions.

Relationship - Trustee  

Ocorian Corporate Services (Mauritius) Limited (previously known as Abax Corporate Services Ltd), a company
incorporated in Mauritius, provides trustee services to the Fund.

Trustee fees payable 825 3 363

Trustee fees charged for the year - 7 538

Relationship - Investment Manager

The Fund is managed by African Alliance Mauritius Management Company Limited, an investment management and
administration company incorporated in Mauritius.  African Alliance Mauritius Management Company Limited provides
management services to the Fund and receives, in return, an annual fee, collected monthly, based on the total asset
value of the Fund at a rate not exceeding 2%.

Management fees payable 6 722 64

Management fees charged for the year 6 916 1 857
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Haussmann Rech Dollar Fund

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

9. Financial risk management objectives and policies

Introduction

The Fund’s objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holder value.  Risk is inherent in the Fund’s
activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risks
limits and other controls.  The process of risk management is critical to the Fund’s continuing profitability.  The Fund is
exposed to market risk (which include interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk arising
from the financial instruments it holds.

Risk management structure

The Fund’s Investment Manager is responsible for identifying and controlling risks.  The directors of the management
company supervise the Investment Manager and are ultimately responsible for the overall risk management of the Fund.

Risk measurement and reporting system

The Fund’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal
circumstances and unexpected losses that are estimates of the ultimate actual loss, based on statistical models.  The
models make use of the probabilities derived from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment.

Monitoring and controlling risks are primarily set up based on limits established by the Board of the management
company.  These limits reflect the business strategy, including the risk that the Fund is willing to accept and the market
environment of the Fund.  In addition, the Fund monitors and measures the overall risk in relation to the aggregate risk
exposure across all risk types and activities.

Risk mitigation

The Fund has investment guidelines that set out its overall business strategies, its tolerance for risk and its general risk
management philosophy.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentration of risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Fund’s performance to developments affecting a particular
industry or geographical location.  Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are
entered into with the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities,
or activities in the same geographical region, or that have similar economic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of liquidity risk may arise from the repayment terms of financial liabilities or reliance on a particular
market to realise liquid assets.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Fund’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to
focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio.  The Investment Manager is instructed to reduce exposure to manage
excessive risk concentrations when they arise.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign exchange rates
will affect the Fund's income or the fair value of its holdings of financial instruments.

The Fund's strategy for the management of market risk is driven by the Fund's investment objective.  The investment
objective of the Fund is to enhance returns and control risks.  The Fund's market risk is managed on a daily basis by the
investment manager in accordance with policies and procedures put in place.  Details of the Fund's investment portfolio
at the reporting date are disclosed in Note 11.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar 2018 2017

9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rate will affect future cash flows or the fair values of
financial instruments.

The interest rate exposure arises on money market investments.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Fund's profit or loss for the year to a reasonably possible change
in interest rate, with all other variables held constant.  The sensitivity of the change in net assets attributable to unit
holders is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the net interest income for one year, based on the
floating rate financial assets held at the end of the reporting period.

In practice, the actual trading results may differ from the sensitivity analysis below and the difference could be
significant.

Change in
basis points

Sensitivity of
interest
income

31 December 2018 +/- 10 +/-  730
31 December 2017 +/- 10 +/-3 372

Currency  risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Fund is not exposed to currency risk since its assets and liabilities are denominated in US Dollars.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets.  Exposure to liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Fund could be required to pay its liabilities or redeem its units earlier than expected.
The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its redeemable units on a regular basis.  Units are redeemable at the
holders' option, based on the Fund's Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit at the time of the redemption, calculated in
accordance with the Fund's Trust Deed.

The Fund manages its obligation to repurchase the units when required to do so and its overall liquidity risk by:

• allowing for the redemptions, payments to be made within 7 days of the redemption instructions being

received,

• searching for new investors,

• withdrawal of cash deposits,

• disposal of highly liquid assets, and

• disposal of other assets.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar 2018 2017

9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

It is the Fund's policy that the Investment Manager monitors the Fund's liquidity position on a daily basis and that the
directors of the management company review it on a quarterly basis.

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Fund's financial liabilities based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

For financial liabilities, the maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity date.  When a counterparty has a choice of when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Fund is required to pay.

On demand
Less than

1 year Total
2018

Financial liabilities
Net assets attributable to unit holders 660 347 - 660 347
Management fees - 6 722 6 722
Trustee fees - 825 825
Audit fees - 5 617 5 617
Other payable - 5 603 5 603

660 347 18 767 679 114

2017

Net assets attributable to unit holders 750 138 - 750 138
Management fees - 64 64
Trustee fees - 3 363 3 363
Audit fees - 3 561 3 561
Other expenses - 447 447

750 138 7 435 757 573

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Fund by failing to
discharge an obligation.

The Fund is exposed to the risk of credit-related losses that can occur as a result of a counterparty or issuer being
unable or unwilling to honour its contractual obligations.  These credit exposures exist within financing relationships
and other transactions.

It is the Fund's policy to enter into financial instruments with reputable counterparties.

The Investment Manager closely monitors the creditworthiness of the Fund's counterparties (for example, brokers,
custodians, managers and banks) by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements and press releases on a
regular basis.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar 2018 2017

9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The following table contains an analysis of the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risks, which are the instruments'
carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Financial instruments

Interest receivable 1 373 431
Cash and cash equivalents 677 741 757 142

Total credit risk exposure 679 114 757 573

The above financial assets are subject to the expected credit loss model and no impairment has been identified for the
year under review. Cash and cash equivalents are held with reputable financial institutions.

Fair value

The fair values of the Fund's financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts due to their short term
nature.

10. Financial assets and liabilities by category

The following table analyses the carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities by category as defined
in IFRS 9.

Financials assets at amortised cost
Interest receivable 1 373 431
Cash and cash equivalents 677 741 757 142

Total financial assets 679 114 757 573

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Net assets attributable to unit holders 660 347 750 138
Management fees 6 722 64
Trustee fees 825 3 363
Audit fees 5 617 3 561
Other payable 5 603 447

Total financial liabilities 679 114 757 573
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar 2018 2017

11. Analysis of total assets

Currency Country

Interest
rate per
annum Holdings Fair value

% of
Gross
assets

2018

Loans and receivables

Current:

Cash and cash equivalents

Money market investments
Blackrock - ICS Institutional US Dollar Liquidity
Fund USD Ireland %0.32 664 682 664 682 97.88

Bank
Standard Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited USD Mauritius - 13 059 13 059 1.92

677 741 99.80

Interest receivable 1 373 0.20

Total 679 114 100.00

2017

Currency Country Maturity date

Interest
rate per
annum Holdings Fair value

% of
Gross
assets

Loans and receivables

Current:
Money market investments
Blackrock - ICS Institutional US
Dollar Liquidity Fund USD Ireland %0.89 729 731 729 731 96.32

Bank
Standard Chartered Bank
(Mauritius) Limited USD Mauritius %- 27 411 27 411 3.62

757 142 99.94

Interest receivable 431 0.06

Total 757 573 100.00

12. Events after the reporting period

There are no significant events that have occurred in respect of the Fund and the management company, subsequent to
the year end, that may be relevant to the accuracy of these financial statements.
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Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note 2018 2017

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 7 692 496 29 156 969

Dividend receivable - 14 166

Prepayments and other receivables 1 934 930

Cash and cash equivalents 2 1 252 679 71 932

Total assets 8 947 109 29 243 997

Liabilities

Management fees 8 7 168 15 323

Custodian fees 1 000 1 000

Trustee fees 8 904 2 414

Audit fees 4 886 10 414

Total liabilities excluding net assets attributable to unit holders 13 958 29 151

Net assets attributable to unit holders 8 933 151 29 214 846

Represented by :
Net assets attributable to unit holders 8 933 151 29 214 846

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 59 to 71 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended

31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note 2018 2017

Net gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 - 3 529 144

Dividend income 44 153 28 038

Income equalisation 4 389 371 (119 126)

Total income 433 524 3 438 056

Expenses

Net loss from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (5 340 500) -

Management fees 8 (205 690) (155 388)

Custodian fees (15 891) (12 000)

Trustee fees 8 (5 826) (7 538)

Audit fees (8 527) (10 414)

Bank charges - (86)

Other operating expenses (20 178) (14 614)

Total expenses (5 596 612) (200 040)

(Decrease) / Increase  in net assets attributable to unit holders (5 163 088) 3 238 016

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 59 to 71 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to unit holders for the year ended 

31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note

Net assets
attributable to
unit holders

Number of
units

Net asset
value

per unit

Balance at 01 January 2017 17 437 665 19 642 047 0.91

Contributions and redemptions by unit holders
Issue of units during the year 11 123 600 10 722 606
Redemption of units during the year (2 584 435) (2 609 271)
Increase in net assets attributable to unit holders 3 238 016 -

Balance at 31 December 2017 6 29 214 846 27 755 382 1.05

Balance at 01 January 2018 29 214 846 27 755 382 1.05

Contributions and redemptions by unit holders
Issue of units during the year 2 868 168 2 627 736
Redemption of units during the year (17 986 776) (18 905 364)
Decrease in net assets attributable to unit holders (5 163 087) -

Balance at 31 December 2018 6 8 933 151 11 477 755 0.78

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 59 to 71 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 18 596 944 2 445 635

Payments for acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 (2 472 971) (10 805 885)

Dividend received 58 319 22 298

Trustee fees paid (7 336) (6 250)

Management fees paid (213 845) (153 407)

Custodian fees paid (15 891) (12 000)

Audit fees paid (14 055) (9 094)

Bank charges paid - (86)

Other operating expenses paid (21 180) (14 641)

Net cash generated / (used in) from operating activities 15 909 985 (8 533 430)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of units 5 2 824 951 10 974 511

Payment on redemption of units 5 (17 554 188) (2 554 472)

Net cash (used in )/ generated from  financing activities (14 729 237) 8 420 039

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1 180 748 (113 391)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the  year 71 931 185 323

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2 1 252 679 71 932

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 59 to 71 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar 2018 2017

1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading
Listed securities - 9 162 883
Unlisted securities 7 692 496 19 994 086

Opening balance 29 156 969 17 267 575
Additions 2 472 971 10 805 885
Disposals (18 817 057) (2 035 219)
Unrealised (losses) / gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (5 120 387) 3 118 728

Closing balance 7 692 496 29 156 969

Net  (loss) / gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is analysed as follows:
Realised (220 113) 410 416
Unrealised (5 120 387) 3 118 728

(5 340 500) 3 529 144

Refer to Note 3, Fair value of financial instruments, for details of the financial assets and Note 11 , Analysis of total
assets, for terms and conditions of the above securities.

2. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of :
Bank balances and liquid investments 1 252 679 71 932

Analysed as:
Cash at bank 1 252 679 71 932

3. Fair value of financial instruments

The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used
in making the measurements.

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).  This category includes instruments using: quoted market prices in active market for similar
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable.  This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument's valuation.  This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments but for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar 2018 2017

3. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

2018

African Alliance SICAV Fund - Class I - 7 692 496 - 7 692 496

- 7 692 496 - 7 692 496

2017

African Alliance SICAV Fund - Class I - 19 994 086 - 19 994 086
Aberdeen Emerging Markets Investment
Company Ltd 702 058 - - 702 058
SPDR S+P Biotech ETF 485 456 - - 485 456
Goldman Sachs ActiveBeta U.S Large Cap
Equity Ind 1 845 722 - - 1 845 722
Kraneshshares CSI China Internet ETF 702 734 - - 702 734
S&P US Health Care UCITS ETF 626 778 - - 626 778
Ishares Trust-Dow Jones US Regional
Banks 897 078 - - 897 078
IShares MSCI Japan USD Hedged UCITS
ETF 293 276 - - 293 276
IShares IV Plc Ishs Edge MSCI USA
Multifact Ucits ETF 1 337 248 - - 1 337 248
ISharesIV Plc Ishs Edge MSCI USA
Multifact Ucits ETF EUR 1 055 497 - - 1 055 497
Ishares IV Plc Ishs Edge MSCI Eur 723 823 - - 723 823
Ishares IV Plc Ishs EDG MSCI Eur Momn 493 213 - - 493 213

9 162 883 19 994 086 - 29 156 969

Financial instruments not measured at fair value 

Type Valuation technique
African Alliance SICAV-Class 1 (Redeemable
participating shares)

Net asset value per unit.

When the fair values of listed equities and debt securities are based on quoted market prices or binding dealer prices
(bid prices for long positions and ask prices for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs, the
instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

When financial instruments are not measured at quoted prices in an active market, they are valued using observable
inputs, such as recently executed transaction prices in securities of the issuer or comparable issuers and yield curves.
Adjustments are made to the valuations when necessary to recognise differences in the instruments' terms.  To the
extent that these inputs are observable, the Fund classifies the fair value of those investments as Level 2.
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3. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The carrying amount of the following financial instruments not measured at fair value approximate their fair value due to
their short term nature.

• Cash and cash equivalents. 

• Net assets attributable to unit holders.

4. Income equalisation

Income equalisation on issue of units (43 217) (149 089)
Income equalisation on redemption of units 432 588 29 963

Net income / (expense) for the year 389 371 (119 126)

Income equalisation is accrued income / (expense) included in the price of units created and redeemed by the Fund
during the accounting period.  The subscription price of the units is deemed to include a deemed income payment
calculated by reference to the accrued income of the units.  The redemption price of each unit will also include a
payment in respect of the accrued income of the unit up to the date of the redemption.

5. Issue and redemption of units during the year

Units created during the year 2 868 168 11 123 600
Income equalisation adjustment (Note 4) (43 217) (149 089)

Proceeds from issue of units 2 824 951 10 974 511

Units redeemed during the year (17 986 776) (2 584 435)
Income equalisation adjustment (Note 4) 432 588 29 963

Payment on redemption of units (17 554 188) (2 554 472)

6. Redeemable participating units

The Fund's capital is represented by these redeemable participating units.  Quantitative information about the Fund's
capital is provided in the Statement of changes in net assets attributable to unit holders.

Each unit issued confers upon the unit holder an equal interest in the Fund, and is of equal value.  A unit does not
confer any interest in any particular asset or investment of the Fund.  Unit holders have various rights under the Fund's
Trust Deed, including the right to:

• have their unit redeemed at a proportionate unit price based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the

redemption date,

• receive income distributions, and

• participate in the termination and winding up of the Fund.
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6. Redeemable participating units (continued)

The rights, obligations and restrictions attached to each unit are identical in all respects.  

For the purpose of issue and redemption of units, the net assets attributable to unit holders are calculated in accordance
with the Fund's Trust Deed.

7. Capital management

As a result of the ability to issue and redeem units, the capital of the Fund can vary depending on the demand for
redemptions and subscriptions to the Fund.  The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and has
no legal restrictions on the issue or redemption of redeemable units beyond those included in the Fund's constitution.

The Fund's objectives for managing capital are:

• to invest the capital investments meeting the description, risk exposure and expected return indicated in its

Trust Deed,

• to achieve consistent returns while safeguarding capital by investing in a diversified portfolio, by participating in

other capital markets and by using various investment strategies, and

• to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the Fund, and to meet redemption requests as they arise.

Refer to Note 9 , Financial risk management objectives and policies, for the policies and processes applied by the Fund
in managing its capital.

8. Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the party in making financial or operational decisions.

Relationship - Trustee  

Ocorian Corporate Services (Mauritius) Limited (previously known as Abax Corporate Services Ltd), a company
incorporated in Mauritius, provides trustee services to the Fund.

Trustee fees payable 904 2 414

Trustee fees charged for the year 5 826 7 538
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8. Related parties (continued)

Relationship - Investment Manager

The Fund is managed by African Alliance Mauritius Management Company Limited, an investment management and
administration company incorporated in Mauritius.  African Alliance Mauritius Management Company Limited provides
management services to the Fund and receives, in return, an annual fee, collected monthly, based on the total asset
value of the Fund at a rate not exceeding 2%.

Management fees payable 7 168 15 323

Management fees charged for the year 205 690 155 388

Investments in the Fund made by other Haussmann Rech Unit Trusts:

Number of
Units held

Value of units
held

% of units
held

Distributions
to unit

holders
Distributions

payable

Haussmann Rech Global Managed Fund

Opening balance - 01 January 2017 6 000 200 5 330 587

Units acquired 1 150 204 1 200 000

Units disposed (1 015 780) (1 010 000)

Closing balance - 31 December 2017 6 134 624 6 457 231 22.10 - -

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 6 134 624 6 457 231 22.10 -

Units acquired 2 269 931 2 450 000

Units disposed (7 630 120) (7 600 000)

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 774 435 602 810 6.75 - -
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8. Related parties (continued)

Investments in the Fund made by other African Alliance Unit Trusts:

Number of
Units held

Value of units
held

% of units
held

Distributions
to unit

holders
Distributions

payable

African Alliance Swaziland Offshore Fund

Opening balance - 01 January 2017 6 099 234 5 418 559 31.05

Units acquired 1 759 849 1 600 000

- -

Closing balance - 31 December 2017 7 859 083 8 272 376 28.32 - -

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 7 859 083 8 272 376 28.32 -

Units disposed (3 950 000) (3 434 264)

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 3 909 083 3 042 779 34.06 - -

African Alliance Kenya Managed Fund

Opening balance - 01 January 2017 127 102 112 918 0.65

- -

Closing balance - 31 December 2017 127 102 112 918 0.65 - -

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 127 102 112 918 0.65 -

Units acquired - -

Units disposed (127 102) (107 316)

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 - - - - -

Investments held in related parties:

African Alliance SICAV Fund - Class I

The Fund holds investments in African Alliance SICAV Fund, a fund managed by African Alliance Advisory (Pty) Limited.

Investments held in African Alliance SICAV Fund - Class I 7 692 496 19 994 086

Dividend received during the year - -
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies

Introduction

The Fund’s objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holder value.  Risk is inherent in the Fund’s
activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risks
limits and other controls.  The process of risk management is critical to the Fund’s continuing profitability.  The Fund is
exposed to market risk (which include interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk arising
from the financial instruments it holds.

Risk management structure

The Fund’s Investment Manager is responsible for identifying and controlling risks.  The directors of the management
company supervise the Investment Manager and are ultimately responsible for the overall risk management of the Fund.

Risk measurement and reporting system

The Fund’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal
circumstances and unexpected losses that are estimates of the ultimate actual loss, based on statistical models.  The
models make use of the probabilities derived from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment.

Monitoring and controlling risks are primarily set up based on limits established by the Board of the management
company.  These limits reflect the business strategy, including the risk that the Fund is willing to accept and the market
environment of the Fund.  In addition, the Fund monitors and measures the overall risk in relation to the aggregate risk
exposure across all risk types and activities.

Risk mitigation

The Fund has investment guidelines that set out its overall business strategies, its tolerance for risk and its general risk
management philosophy.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentration of risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Fund’s performance to developments affecting a particular
industry or geographical location.  Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are
entered into with the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities,
or activities in the same geographical region, or that have similar economic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of liquidity risk may arise from the repayment terms of financial liabilities or reliance on a particular
market to realise liquid assets.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Fund’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to
focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio.  The Investment Manager is instructed to reduce exposure to manage
excessive risk concentrations when they arise.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign exchange rates will affect the
Fund's income or the fair value of its holdings of financial instruments.

The Fund's strategy for the management of market risk is driven by the Fund's investment objective.  The investment objective of the
Fund is to enhance returns and control risks.  The Fund's market risk is managed on a daily basis by the investment manager in
accordance with policies and procedures put in place.  Details of the Fund's investment portfolio at the reporting date are disclosed in
Note 11.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rate will affect future cash flows or the fair values of
financial instruments.

The Fund is not exposed to interest rate risk.

Currency  risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

Consequently, the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency, relative to other currencies, may
change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the fair value or future cash flows of the portion of the Fund's assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the US Dollar.

Accordingly, the value of the Fund's assets will not be affected favourably or unfavourably by fluctuations in currency
rates and therefore the Fund will necessarily not be subject to foreign exchange risks.

Change in
currency rate

%

 effect of the change in net assets
attributable to unit holders 

Assets
British Pound 10 - 346 586
Euro 10 - 49 321

- 395 907

Price risk

Price risk is the risk of unfavourable changes in the fair values of equities and Fund value as a result of changes in the
levels of equity indices and the value of individual securities and fund prices.

Price risk is managed by the Investment Manager by diversifying the portfolio as set out by the Trust Deed.

Considering the reasonably possible increase of 10% in security indices and individual security and fund prices, the
effect on the Fund's net assets attributable to unit holders is as follows:

Effect of 10% change in equity price 769 249 2 915 697

A weakening of equity prices would result in an equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown above.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets.  Exposure to liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Fund could be required to pay its liabilities or redeem its units earlier than expected.
The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its redeemable units on a regular basis.  Units are redeemable at the
holders' option, based on the Fund's Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit at the time of the redemption, calculated in
accordance with the Fund's Trust Deed.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Fund manages its obligation to repurchase the units when required to do so and its overall liquidity risk by:

• allowing for the redemptions, payments to be made within 7 days of the redemption instructions being

received,

• searching for new investors,

• withdrawal of cash deposits,

• disposal of highly liquid assets, and

• disposal of other assets.

It is the Fund's policy that the Investment Manager monitors the Fund's liquidity position on a daily basis and that the
directors of the management company review it on a quarterly basis.

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Fund's financial liabilities based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

For financial liabilities, the maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity date.  When a counterparty has a choice of when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Fund is required to pay.

On demand
Less than

1 year Total
2018

Financial liabilities

Management fees - 7 168 7 168
Custodian fees - 1 000 1 000
Trustee fees - 904 904
Audit fees - 4 886 4 886
Net assets attributable to unit holders 8 933 151 - 8 933 151

8 933 151 13 958 8 947 109

2017

Management fees - 15 323 15 323
Custodian fees - 1 000 1 000
Trustee fees - 2 414 2 414
Audit fees - 10 414 10 414
Net assets attributable to unit holders 29 214 846 - 29 214 846

29 214 846 29 151 29 243 997

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Fund by failing to
discharge an obligation.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

The Fund is exposed to the risk of credit-related losses that can occur as a result of a counterparty or issuer being
unable or unwilling to honour its contractual obligations.  These credit exposures exist within financing relationships
and other transactions.

It is the Fund's policy to enter into financial instruments with reputable counterparties.

The Investment Manager closely monitors the creditworthiness of the Fund's counterparties (for example, brokers,
custodians, managers and banks) by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements and press releases on a
regular basis.

The following table contains an analysis of the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risks, which are the instruments'
carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Financial instruments

Dividend receivable - 14 166
Cash and cash equivalents 1 252 679 71 932

Total credit risk exposure 1 252 679 86 098

The above financial assets are subject to the expected credit loss model and no impairment has been identified for the
year under review. Cash and cash equivalents are held with reputable financial institutions.

Fair value

The fair values of the Fund's financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.

10. Financial assets and liabilities by category

The following table analyses the carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities by category as defined
in IFRS 9.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading 7 692 496 29 156 969

Amortised cost
Dividend receivable - 14 166
Cash and cash equivalents 1 252 679 71 932

Total financial assets 8 945 175 29 243 067

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Net assets attributable to unit holders 8 933 151 29 214 846
Management fees 7 168 15 323
Custodian fees 1 000 1 000
Trustee fees 904 2 414
Audit fees 4 886 10 414

Total financial liabilities 8 947 109 29 243 997

68



Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar 2018 2017

11. Analysis of total assets

Currency Country

Price per
unit /

interest
rate per
annum Holdings Fair value

% of
Gross
assets

2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Current:

African Alliance SICAV Fund - Class I USD Luxembourg 67.06 114 711 7 692 496 85.98

7 692 496 85.98

 Financial assets at amortised Cost 

Cash and cash equivalents

Current

Bank
Standard Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited USD Mauritius %- 1 252 679 1 252 679 14.00

Prepayments and other receivables 1 934 0.02

Total 8 947 109 100.00
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11. Analysis of total assets (continued)

Currency Country Maturity date

Price per
unit /

interest
rate per
annum Holdings Fair value

% of
Gross
assets

 2017
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Current:
African Alliance SICAV Fund -
Class I USD Luxembourg 81.65 135 142 19 994 086 68.37
Aberdeen Emerging Markets
Investment Company Ltd GBP UK 6.34 83 640 702 058 2.40
SPDR S+P Biotech ETF USD USA 59.19 5 720 485 456 1.66
Goldman Sachs ActiveBeta U.S
Large Cap Equity Ind USD USA 53.36 34 590 1 845 722 6.31
Kraneshares CSI China Internet
ETF GBP China 58.61 11 990 702 734 2.40
S&P US Health care UCITS ETF USD UK 23.09 27 145 626 778 2.14
Ishares IV Plc Ishs Edge MSCI
Eur GBP UK 7.18 100 800 723 823 2.48
Ishares IV Plc Ishs EDG MSCI
Eur Momn EUR USA 7.55 65 300 493 213 1.69
Ishares MSCI Japan USD
Hedged UCITS ETF USD Japan 37.10 7 905 293 276 1.00
Ishares Trust -Dow Jones US
Regional Banks USD USA 49.29 18 200 897 078 3.07
Ishares  IV Plc Ishs Edge MSCI
USA Multifact Ucits ETF GBP USA 7.04 189 950 1 337 248 4.57
Ishares IV Plc Ishs Edge MSCI
USA MultiFact Ucits ETF EUR USD USA 7.04 149 999 1 055 497 3.61

29 156 969 99.70

 Financial assets at amortised Cost

Cash and cash equivalents
Standard Chartered Bank
(Mauritius) Limited USD Mauritius %- 71 932 71 932 0.25

Dividend receivable 14 166 0.05
Prepayments and other receivables 930 -

Total 29 243 997 100.00

12. Reconciliation of Net Asset Value per unit

Published price (calculated in accordance with redemption requirements) 0.78 1.05

Net asset value as per IFRS 0.78 0.61
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13. Events after the reporting period

There are no significant events that have occurred in respect of the Fund and the management company, subsequent to
the year end, that may be relevant to the accuracy of these financial statements.
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Haussmann Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy Fund

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note 2018

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 12 624 848

Other receivables 2 260

Cash and cash equivalents 2 744 286

Total assets 13 371 394

Liabilities

Management fees 8 10 351

Custodian fees 4 126

Trustee fees 8 619

Audit fees 7 304

Other expenses 625

Total liabilities excluding net assets attributable to unit holders 23 025

Net assets attributable to unit holders 13 348 369

Represented by :
Net assets attributable to unit holders 13 348 369

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 77 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Period
ended

31 December
Figures in US Dollar Note 2018

Income

Dividend income 53 958

Total income 53 958

Expenses

Net loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (1 481 994)

Management fees 8 (24 790)

Custodian fees (22 041)

Trustee fees 8 (1 090)

Audit fees (7 304)

Income Equalisation 4 (14 149)

Other operating expenses (47 419)

Total expenses (1 598 787)

Decrease in net assets attributable to unit holders (1 544 829)

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 77 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Figures in US Dollar Note

Net assets
attributable to
unit holders

Number of
units

Net asset
value

per unit

Balance at 01 January 2018 - - -

Contributions and redemptions by unit holders
Issue of units during the year 14 893 198 15 323 092
Decrease in net assets attributable to unit holders (1 544 829) -

Balance at 31 December 2018 6 13 348 369 15 323 092 0.87

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 77 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Period
ended

31 December
Figures in US Dollar Note 2018

Cash flows from operating activities

Payments for acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 (14 106 842)

Dividend received 51 698

Custody fees paid (17 915)

Trustee fees paid (471)

Management fees paid (14 439)

Other operating expenses paid (46 794)

Net cash used in operating activities (14 134 763)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of units 5 14 879 049

Net cash generated from financing activities 14 879 049

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 744 286

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year -

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 744 286

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 77 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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31 December
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1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading
Listed securities 12 624 848
Unlisted securities -

12 624 848

Opening balance -
Additions 14 106 842
Unrealised loss from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (1 481 994)

Closing balance 12 624 848

Net loss from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is analysed as follows:
Unrealised (1 481 994)

Refer to Note 3, Fair value of financial instruments, for details of the financial assets and Note 11 , Analysis of total
assets, for terms and conditions of the above securities.

2. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of :
Bank balances and liquid investments 744 286

Analysed as:
Cash at bank 744 286

Refer to Note 11, Analysis of total assets, for further details.

3. Fair value of financial instruments

The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used
in making the measurements.

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).  This category includes instruments using: quoted market prices in active market for similar
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable.  This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument's valuation.  This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments but for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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3. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

2018

ALPS ETF Trust Disruptive Technologies 300 291 - - 300 291
ETF Managers Trust-Prime Mobile Payments 174 261 - - 174 261
IShares Trust Cohen and Steers Realty Majors
Index Fund 168 528 - - 168 528
IShares MSCI China ETF 325 981 - - 325 981
IShares MSCI Japan USD Hedged UCITS ETF 776 196 - - 776 196
IShares MSCI World ETF 2 946 583 - - 2 946 583
IShares MSCI All Country Asia Ex Japan ETF 366 123 - - 366 123
IShares Trust- US Aerospace and Defense ETF 245 980 - - 245 980
IShares IEMO IV Plc 1 172 961 - - 1 172 961
IShares IV Plc ISHS MSCI Eur 959 611 - - 959 611
SPDR S&P Oil & Gas Exploration 271 296 - - 271 296
SPDR Select Sector Amex Financial Select
Index 819 813 - - 819 813
SPDR Select Sector Amex Industrial 139 319 - - 139 319
SPDR Select Sector Amex Utilities Index 227 556 - - 227 556
SPDR Select Sector Communication Services 562 853 - - 562 853
SPDR Select Sector SBI Consumer
Discretionary 448 614 - - 448 614
SPDR Select Sector Consumer Staples 484 492 - - 484 492
SPDR Select Sector Innovator ETFs  Loup
Frontier tech 244 289 - - 244 289
SPDR Select Sector Technology 618 870 - - 618 870
SPDR Series Trust 410 410 - - 410 410
SPDR Series Trust Factset Innovative
Technology 307 102 - - 307 102
S&P  US Health Care UCITS 653 719 - - 653 719

12 624 848 - - 12 624 848

When the fair values of listed equities and debt securities are based on quoted market prices or binding dealer prices
(bid prices for long positions and ask prices for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs, the
instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

When financial instruments are not measured at quoted prices in an active market, they are valued using observable
inputs, such as recently executed transaction prices in securities of the issuer or comparable issuers and yield curves.
Adjustments are made to the valuations when necessary to recognise differences in the instruments' terms.  To the
extent that these inputs are observable, the Fund classifies the fair value of those investments as Level 2.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The carrying amount of the following financial instruments not measured at fair value approximate their fair value due to
their short term nature.

• Cash and cash equivalents.

• Net assets attributable to unit holders.
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4. Income equalisation

Income equalisation on issue of units (14 149)

Income equalisation is accrued income / (expense) included in the price of units created and redeemed by the Fund
during the accounting period.  The subscription price of the units is deemed to include a deemed income payment
calculated by reference to the accrued income of the units and the first distribution in respect of any unit will include a
payment of capital usually equal to the amount of such income.  The redemption price of each unit will also include a
payment in respect of the accrued income of the unit up to the date of the redemption.

5. Issue and redemption of units during the year

Units created during the year 14 893 198
Income equalisation adjustment (Note 4) (14 149)

Proceeds from issue of units 14 879 049

6. Redeemable participating units

The Fund's capital is represented by these redeemable participating units.  Quantitative information about the Fund's
capital is provided in the Statement of changes in net assets attributable to unit holders.

Each unit issued confers upon the unit holder an equal interest in the Fund, and is of equal value.  A unit does not
confer any interest in any particular asset or investment of the Fund.  Unit holders have various rights under the Fund's
Trust Deed, including the right to:

• have their unit redeemed at a proportionate unit price based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the

redemption date,

• receive income distributions, and

• participate in the termination and winding up of the Fund.

The rights, obligations and restrictions attached to each unit are identical in all respects.  

For the purpose of issue and redemption of units, the net assets attributable to unit holders are calculated in accordance
with the Fund's Trust Deed.

7. Capital management

As a result of the ability to issue and redeem units, the capital of the Fund can vary depending on the demand for
redemptions and subscriptions to the Fund.  The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and has
no legal restrictions on the issue or redemption of redeemable units beyond those included in the Fund's constitution.

The Fund's objectives for managing capital are:

• to invest the capital investments meeting the description, risk exposure and expected return indicated in its

Trust Deed,
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7. Capital management (continued)

• to achieve consistent returns while safeguarding capital by investing in a diversified portfolio, by participating in

other capital markets and by using various investment strategies, and

• to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the Fund, and to meet redemption requests as they arise.

Refer to Note 9 , Financial risk management objectives and policies, for the policies and processes applied by the Fund
in managing its capital.

8. Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the party in making financial or operational decisions.

Relationship - Trustee  

Ocorian Corporate Services (Mauritius) Limited (previously known Abax Corporate Services Ltd), a company
incorporated in Mauritius, provides trustee services to the Fund.

Trustee fees payable 619

Trustee fees charged for the year 1 090

Relationship - Investment Manager

The Fund is managed by African Alliance Mauritius Management Company Limited, an investment management and
administration company incorporated in Mauritius.  African Alliance Mauritius Management Company Limited provides
management services to the Fund and receives, in return, an annual fee, collected monthly, based on the total asset
value of the Fund at a rate not exceeding 2%.

Management fees payable 10 351

Management fees charged for the year 24 790
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8. Related parties (continued)

Investments in the Fund made by other Haussmann Rech Unit Trusts:

Number of
Units held

Value of units
held

% of units
held

Distributions
to unit

holders
Distributions

payable

Haussmann Rech Global Managed Fund

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 - - - -

Units acquired 9 261 000 9 150 000

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 9 261 000 8 073 879 60.44 - -

Investments made in the Fund by other African Alliance Unit Trusts:

African Alliance Kenya Managed Fund

Number of
Units held

Value of units
held

% of units
held

Distributions
to unit

holders

Distributions
payable

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 - - - -

Units acquired 108 024 100 000

Units disposed - -

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 108 024 94 177 0.70 - -

9. Financial risk management objectives and policies

Introduction

The Fund’s objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holder value.  Risk is inherent in the Fund’s
activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risks
limits and other controls.  The process of risk management is critical to the Fund’s continuing profitability.  The Fund is
exposed to market risk (which include interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk arising
from the financial instruments it holds.

Risk management structure

The Fund’s Investment Manager is responsible for identifying and controlling risks.  The directors of the management
company supervise the Investment Manager and are ultimately responsible for the overall risk management of the Fund.

Risk measurement and reporting system

The Fund’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal
circumstances and unexpected losses that are estimates of the ultimate actual loss, based on statistical models.  The
models make use of the probabilities derived from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Risk measurement and reporting system (continued)

Monitoring and controlling risks are primarily set up based on limits established by the Board of the management
company.  These limits reflect the business strategy, including the risk that the Fund is willing to accept and the market
environment of the Fund.  In addition, the Fund monitors and measures the overall risk in relation to the aggregate risk
exposure across all risk types and activities.

Risk mitigation

The Fund has investment guidelines that set out its overall business strategies, its tolerance for risk and its general risk
management philosophy.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentration of risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Fund’s performance to developments affecting a particular
industry or geographical location.  Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are
entered into with the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities,
or activities in the same geographical region, or that have similar economic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of liquidity risk may arise from the repayment terms of financial liabilities or reliance on a particular
market to realise liquid assets.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Fund’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to
focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio.  The Investment Manager is instructed to reduce exposure to manage
excessive risk concentrations when they arise.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign exchange rates
will affect the Fund's income or the fair value of its holdings of financial instruments.

The Fund's strategy for the management of market risk is driven by the Fund's investment objective.  The investment
objective of the Fund is to enhance returns and control risks.  The Fund's market risk is managed on a daily basis by the
investment manager in accordance with policies and procedures put in place.  Details of the Fund's investment portfolio
at the reporting date are disclosed in Note 11.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rate will affect future cash flows or the fair values of
financial instruments.

The Fund is not exposed to interest rate risk.

Currency  risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Fund is not exposed to currency risk since its assets and liabilities are denominated in US Dollars.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Price risk

Price risk is the risk of unfavourable changes in the fair values of equities and Fund value as a result of changes in the
levels of equity indices and the value of individual securities and fund prices.

Price risk is managed by the Investment Manager by diversifying the portfolio as set out by the Trust Deed.

Considering the reasonably possible increase of 10% in security indices and individual security and fund prices, the
effect on the Fund's net assets attributable to unit holders is as follows:

Effect of 10% change in equity price 1 262 485

A weakening of equity prices would result in an equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown above.
Concentration of equity price risk

The following table contains an analysis of the Fund's concentration of equity price risk by geographical distribution,
based on counterparties' place of primary listing or place of domicile, if not listed.

% of equity
securities

USA 100.00

100.00

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets.  Exposure to liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Fund could be required to pay its liabilities or redeem its units earlier than expected.
The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its redeemable units on a regular basis.  Units are redeemable at the
holders' option, based on the Fund's Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit at the time of the redemption, calculated in
accordance with the Fund's Trust Deed.

The Fund manages its obligation to repurchase the units when required to do so and its overall liquidity risk by:

• allowing for the redemptions, payments to be made within 7 days of the redemption instructions being

received,

• searching for new investors,

• withdrawal of cash deposits,
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

• disposal of highly liquid assets, and

• disposal of other assets.

It is the Fund's policy that the Investment Manager monitors the Fund's liquidity position on a daily basis and that the
directors of the management company review it on a quarterly basis.

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Fund's financial liabilities based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

For financial liabilities, the maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity date.  When a counterparty has a choice of when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Fund is required to pay.

On demand
Less than

1 year Total
2018

Financial liabilities

Management fees - 10 351 10 351
Custodian fees - 4 126 4 126
Trustee fees - 619 619
Audit fees - 7 304 7 304
Other expenses - 625 625
Net assets attributable to unit holders 13 348 369 - 13 348 369

13 348 369 23 025 13 371 394

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Fund by failing to
discharge an obligation.

The Fund is exposed to the risk of credit-related losses that can occur as a result of a counterparty or issuer being
unable or unwilling to honour its contractual obligations.  These credit exposures exist within financing relationships
and other transactions.

It is the Fund's policy to enter into financial instruments with reputable counterparties.

The Investment Manager closely monitors the creditworthiness of the Fund's counterparties (for example, brokers,
custodians, managers and banks) by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements and press releases on a
regular basis.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The following table contains an analysis of the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risks, which are the instruments'
carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Financial instruments

Other receivable 2 260
Cash and cash equivalents 744 286

Total credit risk exposure 746 546

The above financial assets are subject to the expected credit loss model and impairment has been identified for the year
under review. Cash and cash equivalents are held with reputable financial institutions.

Fair value

The fair values of the Fund's financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.

10. Financial assets and liabilities by category

The following table analyses the carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities by category as defined
in IFRS 9.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading 12 624 848

Financial assets at amortised costs
Interest receivable 2 260
Cash and cash equivalents 744 286

Total financial assets 13 371 394

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Net assets attributable to unit holders 13 348 369
Management fees 10 351
Custodian fees 4 126
Trustee fees 619
Audit fees 7 304
Other expenses 625

Total financial liabilities 13 371 394
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11. Analysis of total assets

Currency Country

Price per
unit /

interest
rate per
annum Holdings Fair value

% of
Gross
assets

2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Current:

ALPS ETF Trust Disruptive Technologies USD USA 23.88 12 575 300 291 2.25
ETF Managers Trust-Prime Mobile Payments USD USA 34.95 4 986 174 261 1.30
IShares Trust Cohen and Steers Realty Majors
Index Fund USD USA 95.70 1 761 168 528 1.26
IShares MSCI China ETF USD USA 52.62 6 195 325 981 2.44
IShares MSCI World ETF USD USA 78.87 37 360 2 946 583 22.04
IShares MSCI All Country Asia Ex Japan ETF USD USA 63.53 5 763 366 123 2.74
IShares Trust -US Aerospace and Defense ETF USD USA 172.86 1 423 245 980 1.84
IShares MSCI Japan USD Hedged UCITS ETF USD USA 31.81 24 401 776 196 5.81
IShares IEMO IV Plc USD USA 6.46 181 447 1 172 961 8.77
IShares IV Plc ISHS MSCI Eur USD USA 5.92 162 078 959 611 7.18
SPDR S&P Oil & Gas Exploration USD USA 26.53 10 226 271 296 2.03
SPDR Select Sector Amex Financial Select
Index USD USA 23.82 34 417 819 813 6.13
SPDR Select Sector Amex Industrial USD USA 64.41 2 163 139 319 1.04
SPDR Select Sector Amex Utilities Index USD USA 52.92 4 300 227 556 1.70
SPDR Select Sector Communication Services USD USA 41.28 13 635 562 853 4.21
SPDR Select Sector SBI Consumer
Discretionary USD USA 99.01 4 531 448 614 3.36
SPDR Select Sector Consumer Staples USD USA 50.78 9 541 484 492 3.62
SPDR Select Sector Innovator ETFs  Loup
Frontier tech USD USA 20.31 12 028 244 289 1.83
SPDR Select Sector Technology USD USA 61.98 9 985 618 870 4.63
SPDR Series Trust USD USA 71.75 5 720 410 410 3.07
SPDR Series Trust Factset Innovative
Technology USD USA 82.71 3 713 307 102 2.30
S&P  US Health Care UCITS USD USA 24.08 27 145 653 719 4.88

12 624 848 94.42

Financial assets at amortised costs

Cash and cash equivalents

Current

Bank
Standard Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited USD Mauritius %- 744 286 744 286 5.57

Other receivables 2 260 0.01

Total 13 371 394 100.00
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12. Reconciliation of Net Asset Value per unit

Published price (calculated in accordance with redemption requirements) 0.87

Net asset value as per IFRS 0.87

13. Events after the reporting period

There are no significant events that have occurred in respect of the Fund and the management company, subsequent to
the year end, that may be relevant to the accuracy of these financial statements.
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Haussmann Rech Global Fixed Income Fund

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note 2018 2017

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 14 075 969 13 366 088

Prepayments and other receivables 1 038 582 907

Cash and cash equivalents 2 85 893 391 839

Total assets 14 162 900 14 340 834

Liabilities

Management fees 8 11 227 9 008

Custodian fees 1 000 1 000

Trustee fees 8 904 2 414

Audit fees 7 736 5 107

Total liabilities excluding net assets attributable to unit holders 20 867 17 529

Net assets attributable to unit holders 14 142 033 14 323 305

Represented by :
Net assets attributable to unit holders 14 142 033 14 323 305

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 93 to 104 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note 2018 2017

Income

Net gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 - 698 547

Dividend income 128 356 43 545

Income equalisation 4 2 851 (52 656)

Total income 131 207 689 436

Expenses

Net loss from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (158 824) -

Management fees (137 725) (108 093)

Custodian fees (10 724) (12 000)

Trustee fees (5 826) (7 538)

Audit fees (9 521) (5 107)

Bank charges - (86)

Other operating expenses (17 242) (11 716)

Total expenses (339 862) (144 540)

(Decrease) / increase in net assets attributable to unit holders (208 655) 544 896

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 93 to 104 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Haussmann Rech Global Fixed Income Fund

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to unit holders for the year ended 

31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note Share capital
Retained
income

Total
equity

Balance at 01 January 2017 11 635 722 11 579 226 0.97

Contributions and redemptions by unit holders
Issue of units during the year 3 302 595 3 064 955
Redemption of units during the year (1 159 908) (1 093 621)
Increase in net assets attributable to unit holders 544 896 -

Balance at 31 December 2017 6 14 323 305 13 550 560 1.06

Balance at 01 January 2018 14 323 305 13 550 560 1.06

Contributions and redemptions by unit holders
Issue of units during the year 1 828 480 1 687 275
Redemption of units during the year (1 801 097) (1 679 244)
Decrease in net assets attributable to unit holders (208 655) -

Balance at 31 December 2018 6 14 142 033 13 558 591 1.04

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 93 to 104 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 2 385 373 2 153 781

Payments for acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 (3 254 078) (3 501 456)

Other receivable 567 083 (567 189)

Dividend received 143 142 29 931

Custody fees paid (10 724) (12 000)

Trustee fees paid (7 336) (6 250)

Management fees paid (135 506) (107 950)

Audit fees paid (6 892) (6 068)

Bank charges paid - (86)

Other operating expenses paid (17 242) (11 750)

Net cash used in operating activities (336 180) (2 029 037)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of units 5 1 783 230 3 225 776

Payment on redemption of units (1 752 996) (1 135 744)

Net cash generated from financing activities 30 234 2 090 032

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (305 946) 60 995

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 391 839 330 844

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 85 893 391 839

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 93 to 104 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading
Listed securities 5 818 429 3 671 229
Unlisted securities 8 257 540 9 694 859

14 075 969 13 366 088

Opening balance 13 366 088 11 319 866
Additions 3 254 078 3 501 456
Disposals (2 339 033) (2 085 525)
Unrealised gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (205 164) 630 291

Closing balance 14 075 969 13 366 088

Net gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is analysed as follows:
Realised 46 340 68 256
Unrealised (205 164) 630 291

(158 824) 698 547

Refer to Note 3, Fair value of financial instruments, for details of the financial assets and Note 11 , Analysis of total
assets, for terms and conditions of the above securities.

2. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of :
Bank balances and liquid investments 85 893 391 839

Analysed as:
Cash at bank 85 893 391 839

Refer to Note 11, Analysis of total assets, for further details.

3. Fair value of financial instruments

The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used
in making the measurements.

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).  This category includes instruments using: quoted market prices in active market for similar
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.
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3. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable.  This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument's valuation.  This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments but for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

2018

Colchester Global Fund - 3 041 729 - 3 041 729
Mellon Global Bond - 2 369 698 - 2 369 698
I Shares Core International Aggregate Bond
Fund 498 606 - - 498 606
Prism Income Fund - 2 846 113 - 2 846 113
Riverfront Strategic Income 710 207 - - 710 207
SPDR Barclays Treasury Bond 7-10 years 761 181 - - 761 181
SPDR Barclays International Treasury Bond 2 269 542 - - 2 269 542
SPDR Citi International Government Inflation
Protected Bond 894 916 - - 894 916
Virtus Newfleet Multisector Bond ETF 683 977 - - 683 977

5 818 429 8 257 540 - 14 075 969

 2017

Cheyne Global Credit - 1 585 342 - 1 585 342
Colchester Global Fund - 3 074 004 - 3 074 004
Mellon Global Bond - 2 398 464 - 2 398 464
I Shares Emerging Markets 156 180 - - 156 180
SPDR Barclays IShares 7-10Y Treasury
bond 2 035 588 - - 2 035 588
Prism Income Fund - 2 637 049 - 2 637 049
Riverfront Strategic Income 743 249 - - 743 249
Virtus Newfleet Multisector Bond ETF 736 212 - - 736 212

3 671 229 9 694 859 - 13 366 088

When the fair values of listed equities and debt securities are based on quoted market prices or binding dealer prices
(bid prices for long positions and ask prices for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs, the
instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

When financial instruments are not measured at quoted prices in an active market, they are valued using observable
inputs, such as recently executed transaction prices in securities of the issuer or comparable issuers and yield curves.
Adjustments are made to the valuations when necessary to recognise differences in the instruments' terms.  To the
extent that these inputs are observable, the Fund classifies the fair value of those investments as Level 2.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value 

Type Valuation technique
Colchester Global Fund/Mellon Global Fund & Prism
Income Fund Net Asset Value per unit.
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3. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The carrying amount of the following financial instruments not measured at fair value approximate their fair value due to
their short term nature.

• Cash and cash equivalents.

• Net assets attributable to unit holders.

4. Income equalisation

Income equalisation on issue of units (45 250) (76 819)
Income equalisation on redemption of units 48 101 24 164

Net income / (expense) for the year 2 851 (52 655)

Income equalisation is accrued income / (expense) included in the price of units created and redeemed by the Fund
during the accounting period.  The subscription price of the units is deemed to include a deemed income payment
calculated by reference to the accrued income of the units and the first distribution in respect of any unit will include a
payment of capital usually equal to the amount of such income.  The redemption price of each unit will also include a
payment in respect of the accrued income of the unit up to the date of the redemption.

5. Issue and redemption of units during the year

Units created during the year 1 828 480 3 302 595
Income equalisation adjustment (Note 4) (45 250) (76 819)

Proceeds from issue of units 1 783 230 3 225 776

Units redeemed during the year (1 801 097) (1 159 908)
Income equalisation adjustment (Note 4) 48 101 24 164

Payment on redemption of units (1 752 996) (1 135 744)

6. Redeemable participating units

The Fund's capital is represented by these redeemable participating units.  Quantitative information about the Fund's
capital is provided in the Statement of changes in net assets attributable to unit holders.

Each unit issued confers upon the unit holder an equal interest in the Fund, and is of equal value.  A unit does not
confer any interest in any particular asset or investment of the Fund.  Unit holders have various rights under the Fund's
Trust Deed, including the right to:

• have their unit redeemed at a proportionate unit price based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the

redemption date,

• receive income distributions, and

• participate in the termination and winding up of the Fund.
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6. Redeemable participating units (continued)

The rights, obligations and restrictions attached to each unit are identical in all respects.  

For the purpose of issue and redemption of units, the net assets attributable to unit holders are calculated in accordance
with the Fund's Trust Deed.

7. Capital management

As a result of the ability to issue and redeem units, the capital of the Fund can vary depending on the demand for
redemptions and subscriptions to the Fund.  The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and has
no legal restrictions on the issue or redemption of redeemable units beyond those included in the Fund's constitution.

The Fund's objectives for managing capital are:

• to invest the capital investments meeting the description, risk exposure and expected return indicated in its

Trust Deed,

• to achieve consistent returns while safeguarding capital by investing in a diversified portfolio, by participating in

other capital markets and by using various investment strategies, and

• to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the Fund, and to meet redemption requests as they arise.

Refer to Note 9 , Financial risk management objectives and policies, for the policies and processes applied by the Fund
in managing its capital.

8. Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the party in making financial or operational decisions.

Relationship - Trustee and custodian fees  

Ocorian Corporate Services (Mauritius) Limited (previously known as Abax Corporate Services Ltd), a company
incorporated in Mauritius, provides trustee services to the Fund.

Trustee fees payable 904 2 414

Trustee fees charged for the year 5 826 7 538
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8. Related parties (continued)

Relationship - Investment Manager

The Fund is managed by African Alliance Mauritius Management Company Limited, an investment management and
administration company incorporated in Mauritius.  African Alliance Mauritius Management Company Limited provides
management services to the Fund and receives, in return, an annual fee, collected monthly, based on the total asset
value of the Fund at a rate not exceeding 2%.

Management fees payable 11 227 9 008

Management fees charged for the year 137 725 108 093

Investments in the Fund made by other Haussmann Rech Unit Trusts:

Number of
Units held

Value of Units
held

% of units
held

Distribution to
unit holders

Distributions
payable

Haussmann Rech Global Managed Fund

Opening balance - 01 January 2017 2 201 791 2 212 529 19.02 -

Units acquired 875 792 920 000

Units disposed (245 549) (255 000)

Closing balance - 31 December 2017 2 832 034 2 993 528 20.90 - -

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 2 832 034 2 993 528 20.90 -

Units acquired 1 655 655 1 750 000

Units disposed (334 993) (350 000)

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 4 152 696 4 332 183 30.63 - -

Investments made in the Fund by other African Alliance Unit Trusts:

African Alliance Botswana Global Income Fund

Number of
Units held

Value of Units
held

% of units
held

Distribution to
unit holders

Distributions
payable

Opening balance - 01 January 2017 3 049 378 3 064 340 26.33 -

Closing balance - 31 December 2017 3 049 378 3 223 265 22.50 - -

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 3 049 378 3 223 265 22.50 -

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 3 049 378 3 181 177 22.49 - -
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8. Related parties (continued)
Investments made in the Fund by other African Alliance Unit Trusts (continued):

African Alliance Swaziland Offshore Fund

Number of
Units held

Value of Units
held

% of units
held

Distribution to
unit holders

Distributions
payable

Opening balance - 01 January 2017 3 362 845 3 379 347 29.04 -

Units acquired 122 129

Closing balance - 31 December 2017 3 362 967 3 554 737 24.82 - -

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 3 362 967 3 554 737 24.82 -

Units acquired - -

Units disposed (700 000) (722 996)

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 2 662 967 2 778 066 19.64 - -

9. Financial risk management objectives and policies

Introduction

The Fund’s objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holder value.  Risk is inherent in the Fund’s
activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risks
limits and other controls.  The process of risk management is critical to the Fund’s continuing profitability.  The Fund is
exposed to market risk (which include interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk arising
from the financial instruments it holds.

Risk management structure

The Fund’s Investment Manager is responsible for identifying and controlling risks.  The directors of the management
company supervise the Investment Manager and are ultimately responsible for the overall risk management of the Fund.

Risk measurement and reporting system

The Fund’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal
circumstances and unexpected losses that are estimates of the ultimate actual loss, based on statistical models.  The
models make use of the probabilities derived from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment.

Monitoring and controlling risks are primarily set up based on limits established by the Board of the management
company.  These limits reflect the business strategy, including the risk that the Fund is willing to accept and the market
environment of the Fund.  In addition, the Fund monitors and measures the overall risk in relation to the aggregate risk
exposure across all risk types and activities.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Risk mitigation

The Fund has investment guidelines that set out its overall business strategies, its tolerance for risk and its general risk
management philosophy.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentration of risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Fund’s performance to developments affecting a particular
industry or geographical location.  Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are
entered into with the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities,
or activities in the same geographical region, or that have similar economic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of liquidity risk may arise from the repayment terms of financial liabilities or reliance on a particular
market to realise liquid assets.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Fund’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to
focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio.  The Investment Manager is instructed to reduce exposure to manage
excessive risk concentrations when they arise.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign exchange rates
will affect the Fund's income or the fair value of its holdings of financial instruments.

The Fund's strategy for the management of market risk is driven by the Fund's investment objective.  The investment
objective of the Fund is to enhance returns and control risks.  The Fund's market risk is managed on a daily basis by the
investment manager in accordance with policies and procedures put in place.  Details of the Fund's investment portfolio
at the reporting date are disclosed in Note 11.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rate will affect future cash flows or the fair values of
financial instruments. The Fund is not exposed to interest rate risk.

Currency  risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Fund is not exposed to currency risk since its assets and liabilities are denominated in US Dollars.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Price risk

Price risk is the risk of unfavourable changes in the fair values of equities and Fund value as a result of changes in the
levels of equity indices and the value of individual securities and fund prices.

Price risk is managed by the Investment Manager by diversifying the portfolio as set out by the Trust Deed.

Considering the reasonably possible increase of 10% in security indices and individual security and fund prices, the
effect on the Fund's net assets attributable to unit holders is as follows:

Effect of 10% change in equity price 1 407 597 1 336 609

A weakening of equity prices would result in an equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown above.

Concentration of equity price risk

The following table contains an analysis of the Fund's concentration of equity price risk by geographical distribution,
based on counterparties' place of primary listing or place of domicile, if not listed.

% of equity
securities

Ireland 41.99 53.97
Mauritius 20.22 19.73
USA 37.79 11.07
UK - 15.23

100.00 100.00

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets.  Exposure to liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Fund could be required to pay its liabilities or redeem its units earlier than expected.
The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its redeemable units on a regular basis.  Units are redeemable at the
holders' option, based on the Fund's Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit at the time of the redemption, calculated in
accordance with the Fund's Trust Deed.

The Fund manages its obligation to repurchase the units when required to do so and its overall liquidity risk by:

• allowing for the redemptions, payments to be made within 7 days of the redemption instructions being

received,

• searching for new investors,

• withdrawal of cash deposits,

• disposal of highly liquid assets, and

• disposal of other assets.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

It is the Fund's policy that the Investment Manager monitors the Fund's liquidity position on a daily basis and that the
directors of the management company review it on a quarterly basis.

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Fund's financial liabilities based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

For financial liabilities, the maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity date.  When a counterparty has a choice of when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Fund is required to pay.

On demand
Less than

1 year Total
2018

Financial liabilities

Management fees - 11 227 11 227
Custodian fees - 1 000 1 000
Trustee fees - 904 904
Audit fees - 7 736 7 736
Net assets attributable to unit holders 14 142 033 - 14 142 033

14 142 033 20 867 14 162 900

2017

Management fees - 9 008 9 008
Custodian fees - 1 000 1 000
Trustee fees - 2 414 2 414
Audit fees - 5 107 5 107
Net assets attributable to unit holders 14 323 305 - 14 323 305

14 323 305 17 529 14 340 834

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Fund by failing to
discharge an obligation.

The Fund is exposed to the risk of credit-related losses that can occur as a result of a counterparty or issuer being
unable or unwilling to honour its contractual obligations.  These credit exposures exist within financing relationships
and other transactions.

It is the Fund's policy to enter into financial instruments with reputable counterparties.

The Investment Manager closely monitors the creditworthiness of the Fund's counterparties (for example, brokers,
custodians, managers and banks) by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements and press releases on a
regular basis.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The following table contains an analysis of the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risks, which are the instruments'
carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Financial instruments

Other receivable 149 581 976
Cash and cash equivalents 85 893 391 839

Total credit risk exposure 86 042 973 815

The above financial assets are subject to the expected credit loss model and no impairment has been identified for the
year under review. Cash and cash equivalents are held with reputable financial institutions.

Fair value

The fair values of the Fund's financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.

10. Financial assets and liabilities by category

The following table analyses the carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities by category as defined
in IFRS 9.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading 14 075 969 13 366 088

Financial assets at amortised costs
Other receivables 149 581 976
Cash and cash equivalents 85 893 391 839

Total financial assets 14 162 011 14 339 903

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Net assets attributable to unit holders 14 142 033 14 323 305
Management fees 11 227 9 008
Custodian fees 1 000 1 000
Trustee fees 904 2 414
Audit fees 7 736 5 107

Total financial liabilities 14 162 900 14 340 834
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11. Analysis of total assets

Currency Country
Price per

unit Holdings Fair value

% of
Gross
assets

2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Current:

Colchester Global Fund USD Ireland 10.01 303 869 3 041 729 21.48
Mellon Global Bond USD Ireland 2.36 1 005 814 2 369 698 16.73
I Shares Core International Aggregate Bond
Fund USD Ireland 52.21 9 550 498 606 3.52
Prism Income Fund USD Mauritius 205.07 13 879 2 846 113 20.10
Riverfront Strategic Income USD USA 24.03 29 555 710 207 5.01
SPDR Barclays IShares 7-10Y Treasury bond USD USA 104.20 7 305 761 181 5.38
SPDR Barclays International Treasury Bond USD USA 27.61 82 200 2 269 542 16.03
SPDR Citi International Government Inflation
Protected Bond USD USA 52.03 17 200 894 916 6.33
Virtus Newfleet Multi Sector USD USA 23.44 29 180 683 977 4.81

14 075 969 99.39

Financial assets at amortised costs

Cash and cash equivalents

Current

Bank
Standard Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited USD Mauritius %- 85 893 85 893 0.61

           Prepayments and other receivables 1 038 0.01

Total 14 162 900 100.00
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11. Analysis of total assets (continued)

Currency Country Maturity date
Price per

unit Holdings Fair value

% of
Gross
assets

 2017
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Current:

Cheyne Global Credit USD Ireland 121.94 13 001 1 585 342 11.05
Colchester Global Fund USD Ireland 10.12 303 869 3 074 004 21.44
Mellon Global Bond USD Ireland 2.38 1 005 814 2 398 464 16.72
SPDR Barclays IShares 7-10
Treasury Bond USD USA 28.43 71 600 2 035 588 14.19
I Shares Emerging Markets USD Ireland 5.28 2 338 156 180 1.09
Prism Income Fund USD Mauritius 165.72 13 879 2 637 049 18.38
Riverfront Strategic Income USD USA 25.15 29 555 743 249 5.18
Virtus Newfleet Multisector Bond USD USA 165.72 29 180 736 212 5.13

13 366 088 93.20

Financial assets at amortised costs

Current:
 Bank 
Standard Chartered Bank
(Mauritius) Limited USD Mauritius %- 391 839 391 839 2.73

Prepayment and other
receivables 582 907 4.06

Total 14 340 834 100.00

12. Reconciliation of Net Asset Value per unit

Published price (calculated in accordance with redemption requirements) 1.04 1.06

Net asset value as per IFRS 1.04 1.06

13. Events after the reporting period

There are no significant events that have occurred in respect of the Fund and the management company, subsequent to
the year end, that may be relevant to the accuracy of these financial statements.

104



Haussmann Rech Global Managed Fund

Audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018



Haussmann Rech Global Managed Fund

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018

Figures in US Dollar Note 2018 2017

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 13 008 881 9 450 234

Prepayments and other receivables 4 839 930

Cash and cash equivalents 2 1 065 472 45 667

Total assets 14 079 192 9 496 831

Liabilities

Custodian fees - 1 000

Trustee fees 8 904 2 414

Audit fees 7 688 3 382

Total liabilities excluding net assets attributable to unit holders 8 592 6 796

Net assets attributable to unit holders 14 070 600 9 490 035

Represented by :
Net assets attributable to unit holders 14 070 600 9 490 035

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 110 to 121 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Figures in US Dollar Note 2018 2017

Income

Net gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 - 1 056 118

Income equalisation 4 - (6 005)

Total income - 1 050 113

Expenses

Net loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 (1 841 354) -

Income equalisation 4 (61 597) -

Custodian fees - (12 000)

Trustee fees 8 (5 826) (7 538)

Audit fees (8 899) (3 382)

Bank charges - (86)

Other operating expenses (1 494) (1 708)

Total expenses (1 919 170) (24 714)

(Decrease) / increase in net assets attributable to unit holders (1 919 170) 1 025 399

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 110 to 121 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Net assets
attributable to
unit holders

Number of
units

Net asset
value

per unit

Balance at 01 January 2017 7 785 087 8 520 793 0.91

Contributions and redemptions by unit holders
Issue of units during the year 2 519 001 2 442 579
Redemption of units during the year (1 839 452) (1 838 985)
Increase in net assets attributable to unit holders 1 025 399 -

Balance at 31 December 2017 6 9 490 035 9 124 387 1.04

Balance at 01 January 2018 9 490 035 9 124 387 1.04

Contributions and redemptions by unit holders
Issue of units during the year 7 897 152 7 924 235
Redemption of units during the year (1 397 417) (1 429 661)
Decrease in net assets attributable to unit holders (1 919 170) -

Balance at 31 December 2018 6 14 070 600 15 618 961 0.90

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 110 to 121 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Figures in US Dollar Note 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 7 950 000 1 265 000

Payments for acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1 (13 350 000) (2 120 000)

Custody fees paid (1 000) (12 000)

Trustee fees paid (7 337) (6 250)

Audit fees paid (4 562) (4 060)

Bank charges paid - (86)

Other operating expenses paid (5 434) (1 736)

Net cash used in operating activities (5 418 333) (879 132)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of units 5 7 821 380 2 499 341

Payment on redemption of units 5 (1 383 242) (1 825 797)

Net cash generated from financing activities 6 438 138 673 544

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
1 019 805 (205 588)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 45 667 251 255

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2 1 065 472 45 667

The accounting policies on pages 27 to 40 and notes on pages 110 to 121 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading
Unlisted securities 13 008 881 9 450 234

Opening balance 9 450 235 7 539 116
Additions 13 350 000 2 120 000
Disposals (8 056 322) (1 234 836)
Unrealised losses from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (1 735 032) 1 025 955

Closing balance 13 008 881 9 450 235

Net loss from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is analysed as follows:
Realised (106 322) 30 164
Unrealised (1 735 032) 1 025 954

(1 841 354) 1 056 118

Refer to Note 3, Fair value of financial instruments, for details of the financial assets and Note 11 , Analysis of total
assets, for terms and conditions of the above securities.

2. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of :
Bank balances and liquid investments 1 065 472 45 667

Analysed as:
Cash at bank 1 065 472 45 667

Refer to Note 11, Analysis of total assets, for further details.

3. Fair value of financial instruments

The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used
in making the measurements.

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).  This category includes instruments using: quoted market prices in active market for similar
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable.  This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument's valuation.  This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments but for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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3. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

2018

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities
Fund - 602 810 - 602 810
Haussmann Rech Global Fixed Income Fund - 4 332 183 - 4 332 183
Haussman Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy
Fund - 8 073 888 - 8 073 888

- 13 008 881 - 13 008 881

 2017

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities
Fund - 6 456 882 - 6 456 882
Haussmann Rech Global Fixed Income Fund - 2 993 352 - 2 993 352

- 9 450 234 - 9 450 234

When the fair values of listed equities and debt securities are based on quoted market prices or binding dealer prices
(bid prices for long positions and ask prices for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs, the
instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

When financial instruments are not measured at quoted prices in an active market, they are valued using observable
inputs, such as recently executed transaction prices in securities of the issuer or comparable issuers and yield curves.
Adjustments are made to the valuations when necessary to recognise differences in the instruments' terms.  To the
extent that these inputs are observable, the Fund classifies the fair value of those investments as Level 2.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Type Valuation Technique
Unit Trust invetstments Net asset Value price per unit calculated on daily basis.

The carrying amount of the following financial instruments not measured at fair value approximate their fair value due to
their short term nature.

• Cash and cash equivalents.

• Net assets attributable to unit holders.

4. Income equalisation

Income equalisation on issue of units (75 772) (19 660)
Income equalisation on redemption of units 14 175 13 655

Net expense for the year (61 597) (6 005)

Income equalisation is accrued income / (expense) included in the price of units created and redeemed by the Fund
during the accounting period.  The subscription price of the units is deemed to include a deemed income payment
calculated by reference to the accrued income of the units and the first distribution in respect of any unit will include a
payment of capital usually equal to the amount of such income.  The redemption price of each unit will also include a
payment in respect of the accrued income of the unit up to the date of the redemption.
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5. Issue and redemption of units during the year

Units created during the year 7 897 152 2 519 001
Income equalisation adjustment (Note 4) (75 772) (19 660)

Proceeds from issue of units 7 821 380 2 499 341

Units redeemed during the year (1 397 417) (1 839 452)
Income equalisation adjustment (Note 4) 14 175 13 655

Payment on redemption of units (1 383 242) (1 825 797)

6. Redeemable participating units

The Fund's capital is represented by these redeemable participating units.  Quantitative information about the Fund's
capital is provided in the Statement of changes in net assets attributable to unit holders.

Each unit issued confers upon the unit holder an equal interest in the Fund, and is of equal value.  A unit does not
confer any interest in any particular asset or investment of the Fund.  Unit holders have various rights under the Fund's
Trust Deed, including the right to:

• have their unit redeemed at a proportionate unit price based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the

redemption date,

• receive income distributions, and

• participate in the termination and winding up of the Fund.

The rights, obligations and restrictions attached to each unit are identical in all respects.  

For the purpose of issue and redemption of units, the net assets attributable to unit holders are calculated in accordance
with the Fund's Trust Deed.
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7. Capital management

As a result of the ability to issue and redeem units, the capital of the Fund can vary depending on the demand for
redemptions and subscriptions to the Fund.  The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and has
no legal restrictions on the issue or redemption of redeemable units beyond those included in the Fund's constitution.

The Fund's objectives for managing capital are:

• to invest the capital investments meeting the description, risk exposure and expected return indicated in its

Trust Deed,

• to achieve consistent returns while safeguarding capital by investing in a diversified portfolio, by participating in

other capital markets and by using various investment strategies, and

• to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the Fund, and to meet redemption requests as they arise.

Refer to Note 9 , Financial risk management objectives and policies, for the policies and processes applied by the Fund
in managing its capital.

8. Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the party in making financial or operational decisions.

Relationship - Trustee  

Ocorian Corporate Services (Maurius) Limited (previously known as Abax Corporate Services Ltd), a company
incorporated in Mauritius, provides trustee services to the Fund.

Trustee fees payable 904 2 414

Trustee fees charged for the year 5 826 7 538
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8. Related parties (continued)

Investments in the Fund made by other Haussmann Rech Unit Trusts:

Number of
Units held

Value of units
held

% of units
held

Distributions
received

Distributions
receivable

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities Fund

Opening balance - 01 January 2017 6 000 200 5 326 587 30.55 -

Units acquired 1 150 204 1 200 000

Units disposed (1 015 780) (1 010 000)

Closing balance - 31 December 2017 6 134 624 6 457 231 22.10 - -

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 6 134 624 6 457 231 22.10 -

Units acquired 2 269 931 2 450 000

Units disposed (7 630 120) (7 600 000)

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 774 435 602 810 6.75 - -

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy Fund

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 - - -

Units acquired 9 261 000 9 150 000

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 9 261 000 8 073 819 60.44

Haussmann Rech Global Fixed Income Fund

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 2 201 791 2 212 529 19.02 -

Units acquired 875 792 920 000

Units disposed (245 549) (255 000)

Closing balance - 31 December 2017 2 832 034 2 993 528 20.90 - -

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 2 832 034 2 993 528 20.90 -

Units acquired 1 655 655 1 750 000

Units disposed (334 993) (350 000)

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 4 152 696 4 332 183 30.63 - -
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8. Related parties (continued)

Investments in the Fund made by other African Alliance Unit Trusts:

Number of
Units held

Value of units
held

% of units
held

Distributions
received

Distributions
receivable

African Alliance Swaziland Offshore Fund

Opening balance - 01 January 2017 - - - -

Units acquired 998 180 1 004 176

Units disposed - -

Closing balance - 31 December 2017 998 180 1 038 486 10.94 - -

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 998 180 1 038 486 10.94 -

Units acquired 4 408 913 4 157 260

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 5 407 093 4 872 656 34.62 - -

African Alliance Kenya Managed Fund

Opening balance - 01 January 2017 256 987 234 938 3.02

Units acquired 816 238 844 559

Closing balance - 31 December 2017 1 073 225 1 116 560 11.76 - -

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 1 073 225 1 116 560 11.76 -

Units disposed (737 323) (744 428)

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 335 902 302 701 2.15 - -
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8. Related parties (continued)

Investments in the Fund made by other African Alliance Unit Trusts (continued):

Number of
Units held

Value of units
held

% of units
held

Distributions
received

Distributions
receivable

African Alliance Botswana Global Allocation Fund

Opening balance - 01 January 2017 5 721 367 5 230 479 67.15

Units acquired 628 161 650 605

Units disposed (240 698) (230 000)

Closing balance - 31 December 2017 6 108 830 6 355 499 66.95 - -

Opening balance - 01 January 2018 6 108 830 6 355 499 66.95 -

Units acquired 3 515 322 2 456 002

Closing balance - 31 December 2018 9 624 152 8 672 901 61.62 - -

9. Financial risk management objectives and policies

Introduction

The Fund’s objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holder value.  Risk is inherent in the Fund’s
activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risks
limits and other controls.  The process of risk management is critical to the Fund’s continuing profitability.  The Fund is
exposed to market risk (which include interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk arising
from the financial instruments it holds.

Risk management structure

The Fund’s Investment Manager is responsible for identifying and controlling risks.  The directors of the management
company supervise the Investment Manager and are ultimately responsible for the overall risk management of the Fund.

Risk measurement and reporting system

The Fund’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal
circumstances and unexpected losses that are estimates of the ultimate actual loss, based on statistical models.  The
models make use of the probabilities derived from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment.

Monitoring and controlling risks are primarily set up based on limits established by the Board of the management
company.  These limits reflect the business strategy, including the risk that the Fund is willing to accept and the market
environment of the Fund.  In addition, the Fund monitors and measures the overall risk in relation to the aggregate risk
exposure across all risk types and activities.

Risk mitigation

The Fund has investment guidelines that set out its overall business strategies, its tolerance for risk and its general risk
management philosophy.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Excessive risk concentration

Concentration of risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Fund’s performance to developments affecting a particular
industry or geographical location.  Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are
entered into with the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities,
or activities in the same geographical region, or that have similar economic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of liquidity risk may arise from the repayment terms of financial liabilities or reliance on a particular
market to realise liquid assets.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Fund’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to
focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio.  The Investment Manager is instructed to reduce exposure to manage
excessive risk concentrations when they arise.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign exchange rates
will affect the Fund's income or the fair value of its holdings of financial instruments.

The Fund's strategy for the management of market risk is driven by the Fund's investment objective.  The investment
objective of the Fund is to enhance returns and control risks.  The Fund's market risk is managed on a daily basis by the
investment manager in accordance with policies and procedures put in place.  Details of the Fund's investment portfolio
at the reporting date are disclosed in Note 11.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rate will affect future cash flows or the fair values of
financial instruments.

The Fund is not exposed to interest rate risk.

Currency  risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Fund is not exposed to currency risk since its assets and liabilities are denominated in US Dollars.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk of unfavourable changes in the fair values of equities and Fund value as a result of changes in the
levels of equity indices and the value of individual securities and fund prices.

Price risk is managed by the Investment Manager by diversifying the portfolio as set out by the Trust Deed.

Considering the reasonably possible increase of 10% in security indices and individual security and fund prices, the
effect on the Fund's net assets attributable to unit holders is as follows:

Effect of 10% change in equity price 1 300 888 945 023

A weakening of equity prices would result in an equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown above.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Price risk (continued)

Concentration of equity price risk

The following table contains an analysis of the Fund's concentration of equity price risk by geographical distribution,
based on counterparties' place of primary listing or place of domicile, if not listed.

% of equity
securities

Mauritius 100.00 100.00

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets.  Exposure to liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Fund could be required to pay its liabilities or redeem its units earlier than expected.
The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its redeemable units on a regular basis.  Units are redeemable at the
holders' option, based on the Fund's Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit at the time of the redemption, calculated in
accordance with the Fund's Trust Deed.

The Fund manages its obligation to repurchase the units when required to do so and its overall liquidity risk by:

• allowing for the redemptions, payments to be made within 7 days of the redemption instructions being

received,

• searching for new investors,

• withdrawal of cash deposits,

• disposal of highly liquid assets, and

• disposal of other assets.

It is the Fund's policy that the Investment Manager monitors the Fund's liquidity position on a daily basis and that the
directors of the management company review it on a quarterly basis.

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Fund's financial liabilities based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

For financial liabilities, the maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity date.  When a counterparty has a choice of when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Fund is required to pay.
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9. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

`Liquidity risk (continued)

On demand
Less than

1 year Total
2018

Financial liabilities
Trustee fees - 904 904
Audit fees - 7 688 7 688
Net assets attributable to unit holders 14 070 600 - 14 070 600

14 070 600 8 592 14 079 192

2017
Custodian fees - 1 000 1 000
Trustee fees - 2 414 2 414
Audit fees - 3 382 3 382
Net assets attributable to unit holders 9 490 035 - 9 490 035

9 490 035 6 796 9 496 831

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Fund by failing to
discharge an obligation.

The Fund is exposed to the risk of credit-related losses that can occur as a result of a counterparty or issuer being
unable or unwilling to honour its contractual obligations.  These credit exposures exist within financing relationships
and other transactions.

It is the Fund's policy to enter into financial instruments with reputable counterparties.

The Investment Manager closely monitors the creditworthiness of the Fund's counterparties (for example, brokers,
custodians, managers and banks) by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements and press releases on a
regular basis.

The following table contains an analysis of the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risks, which are the instruments'
carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Financial instruments

Other receivables 4 123 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1 065 472 45 667

Total credit risk exposure 1 069 595 45 667

The above financial assets are subject to the expected credit loss model and no impairment has been identified for the
year under review. Cash and cash equivalents are held with reputable financial institutions.

Fair value

The fair values of the Fund's financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.
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10. Financial assets and liabilities by category

The following table analyses the carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities by category as defined
in IFRS 9.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading 13 008 881 9 450 234

Financial assets at amortised cost 
Other receivables 4 123 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1 065 472 45 667

Total financial assets 14 078 476 9 495 901

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Net assets attributable to unit holders 14 070 600 9 490 035
Custodian fees - 1 000
Trustee fees 904 2 414
Audit fees 7 688 3 382

Total financial liabilities 14 079 192 9 496 831

11. Analysis of total assets

Currency Country

Price per
unit /

interest
rate per
annum Holdings Fair value

% of
Gross
assets

2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Current:

Haussmann Rech Global Equity Opportunities
Fund USD Mauritius 0.78 774 434 602 810 4.28
Haussmann Rech Global Fixed Income Fund USD Mauritius 1.04 4 152 695 4 332 183 30.77
Haussman Rech Global Equity Multi Strategy
Fund USD Mauritius 0.87 9 261 000 8 073 888 57.35

13 008 881 92.40

Financial assets at amortised cost

Current:

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank
Standard Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Limited USD Mauritius - 1 065 472 1 065 472 7.57

Prepayments and other receivables 4 839 0.03

Total 14 079 192 100.00
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11. Analysis of total assets (continued)

Currency Country Maturity date

Price per
unit /

interest
rate per
annum Holdings Fair value

% of
Gross
assets

 2017
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Current:

Haussmann Rech Global Equity
Opportunities Fund USD Mauritius 0.88 6 134 624 6 456 882 67.99
Haussmann Rech Global Fixed
Income Fund USD Mauritius 1.00 2 823 034 2 993 352 31.52

9 450 234 99.51

Financial assets at amortised cost
Current:
Bank
Standard Chartered Bank
(Mauritius) Limited USD Mauritius %- 45 667 45 667 0.49

 Prepayment and other
receivables 930 0.01

Total 9 496 831 100.00

12. Reconciliation of Net Asset Value per unit

Published price (calculated in accordance with redemption requirements) 0.90 1.04

Net asset value as per IFRS 0.90 1.04

13. Events after the reporting period

There are no significant events that have occurred in respect of the Fund and the management company, subsequent to
the year end, that may be relevant to the accuracy of these financial statements.

121


	1. HRUTS INDEX-31 December 2018 Rev.pdf
	2. HRDF Draft FS 31 Dec 18 Rev
	3.HRGE Drfat FS 31 Dec 18 rev
	4. HRMS Draft FS 31 Dec 18 Rev
	5. HRGF Draft FS 31 Dec 18 Rev
	6. HRGM Draft FS 31 Dec 18 Rev
	Page 13 to 19 combined.pdf
	page 13 and 14 Signed pages HRUTS.pdf
	page 15 to 18 doc53631220190329155133
	Page 19 Haussmann - Trustee Report - Signed




